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Chile Faces Demsmn on

By WILLIAM R. LONG .
Herald Latin America Staff

SANTIAGO, Chile — Chile is
waiting anxiously for a sealed
package of papers from the U.S.
Department of Justice.

The military government may
prefer that it never comes, but it
will be hand-delivered before Oct. 1
to the foreign minister. Without
breaking the seal, he will pass it on
to the Chilean Supreme Court.

The court then will- begin pro-
ceedings in the caj},o}ftetlred Gen.
Manuel Contrerag” and two other
Chilean officers charged in the
United States with the murder of
Orlando Letelier, a prominent
Marxist exile from Chile.

The outcome of the proceedings
is far from certain.

THE PAPERS will request extra-
dition of the three Chilean officers
for trial in Washington, D.C., where
Letelier was killed by a bomb in his
car on Sept. 21, 1976.

The Supreme Court is unlikely to
grant extradition. It may order a
trial in Chile.

In that case, the Chilean trial
probably would follow one in

Washington, for the same crime.
Three Cuphn exiles and Michael
Townlew/an American who worked.

for the Chilean secret police, were
arraigned in Washington Aug. 11.
Two other Cuban exiles charged in
the assassination are fugitives.
Contreras is the biggest fish in
the net. He was chief of the secret
police, known by the acronym
DINA, when Letelier was Killed.
According to the indictment, Contr-
eras “‘ordered the assassination.”
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Fernédndez Larios, also were DINA
men. Espinoza was chief of opera-

tions and Ferndndez was an opera-
tive who traveled to the United
States with Townley just before the
assassination.

The three officers were indicted
in Washington on Aug. 1. The Chil-
ean government was not visibly
shaken by the long-expected action,
but the political hazards for Presi-
dent Augusto Pinochet in the case
loom ever larger.

Some informed observers predict
that whatever course the proceed-
ings take, they ultimately will force
the resignation of Pinochet or pro-
voke a coup against him.

Others are betting that Pinochet
will ride it out. The tenacious army
general has held power since Sept.
11, 1973, when he led a bloody coup
against the late Marxist President
Salvador Allende. Letelier had been
Allende’s ambassador to Washing-
ton, then foreign minister and de-
fense minister.

AMERICAN OFFICIALS obvi-
ously are convinced that evidence in
the Letelier assassination against
Contreras and his subordinates
warrants a trial. It has been made
clear that any Chilean move to get
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them off the hook could resulf in,

the withdrawl of the U.S. ambassz-‘

dor here.

Diplomats predict that if the
United States makes that move,
several European governments will
follow, seriously affecting trade
with Chile. Pinochet’s government
would be critically wounded.

An open and impartial trial, on
the other hand, would risk putting
the regime in jeopardy:

Extradltlng 3 in Letelier Murder

@ Chileans at all levels would be '

exposed to detailed and formal
charges that a high and powerful
official in the military regime or-
dered the assassination of a Chilean
in the capital of the United States.

‘® Resentment would swell
among hard-line military officers
who feel that, in defending Chile
against Marxist subversion, it was
not only necessary but patriotic for
DINA to engage in a “dirty war.”
Even military men who do not con-
done DINA's tactics would see the
trial of fellow-officers for obeying
orders as an assault on the Chilean
military’s strong tradition of disci-
pline.

@ Contreras himself, if he felt
betrayed, might attempt in the trial
to lay blame for the assassination
on Pinochet.
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HOWEVER, ITS also possible
that the damage done to Pinochet’s
government by - the prosecution
could be undone by arguments from
the defense.

Contreras’ lawyer, for example,
has claimed recently that Townley
— who has provided evidence for
use against other defendants -— was
an agent of the CIA. Though the
lawyer may not be able to prove
that assertion, it already clouds the
issue in the eyes of many Chileans.

The same lawyer recently began
a campaign of praise for the work
of DINA.

“We non-Marxist Chileans are in-
debted to DINA,” he contends.
‘““Each of its men silently confronted
Marxism, face to face, making re-
construction possible. The men of
DINA are the forgotten battalions
of this legal state of internal waz-
fare.”. ; :

If Pinochet can convince his offi-
cers that the proceedings are one
more unpleasant battle DINA must
fight, traditional discipline may be
maintained.

AT LEAST there should be no
problem in keeping Contreras, Espi-
noza and Fernandez from being ex-
tradited. It has even been suggested
that extradition of the former Chil-
ean intelligence chief is the last
thing the United States really
wants. ¢

“If that happened, a judicial prec

of the CIA, Richard Helm:
ample, for different acts of violence
that agency has carried out around
the world,” said the Chilen news-
magazine Que Pasa. The magazine
said that the CIA was involved in a

1970 plot to kidnap a Chilean gen-.

eral, who was killed in the attempt.

A 1902 extradition treaty be-
tween Chile and the United States
says: “Neither of the contracting
parties shall be bound to deliver up
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its own citizens or subjects under
the stipulations of this treaty.”

“IN THE history of this treaty,
there have been numerous requests
for extradition by one side and the
other,” says Chilean Foreign Minis-
ter Hernén Cubillos. “The precedent
of one being granted has never ex-
isted because the spirit of the treaty
was precisely that each country —
recognizing that the other has an
independent judiciary — may pros-
ecute its own citizens.

“What is going to happen? I'll tell
vou, that depends exclusively on
the quality of the evidence, on how
good a case the Department of Jus-
tice has.” :

According to the treaty, evidence
to justify extradition must be pre-
sented with the formal extradition
request within two months after an
arrest. The Chilean officers were

put under house arrest Aug. 1l at.

U.S. request.

Since then, the Justice Depart-
ment has been carefully preparing
the extradition papers. Chilean law-
yer Alfredo Echeverry, who has
been handling the case in Chilean

courts for the United States, flew to
Washington last week to help.

. The 1902 treaty says that a fugi-
tive shall not be extradited if he
proves that the intent is to try him
for a political offense. The Chilean
Supreme Court conceivably could

‘use that clause as grounds for re-
’leasing the three officers.

U.S. OFFICIALS, however, say
that such a move might bring diplo-
matic reprisals.

Cubillos stresses that both Chile
and the United States are obligated
by the treaty ‘‘to accept whatever
the judges of the Supreme Court de-
cide.”

“And here it is important to re-
member that our judicial system is
absolutely independent,” Cubillos
adds.."The judges have a system of
deliberation among themselves;
they are not judges appointed by
the military junta, they are judges
who come from other periods, and
we don’t know what they are going
to do.”

(Although none of the 13 Su-
preme Court judges have comeé
from outside the Chilean judiciary,
several of them were appointed to
the Supreme Court from other
courts by the current government.)

In past proceedings involving
DINA, Chile’s civil courts have de-
clared the cases out of their juris-
diction and referred them to mili-
tary tribunals. Under Chilean law,
military courts have juristictionover
armed forces personnel.

An American diplomat; reluctant
to predict the course of the Contrer-
as case, speculated; that the United
States might not object to a military
trial if it is open to observers. The
diplomat emphasized that any trial
will be watched closely by U.S.
legal representatives for strict stan-
dards of impartiality.

One close observer said that if a
military trial were held behind
closed doors, it would be difficult
for the United States to accept as
impartial.
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By DAVID F. BELNAP
Los Angeles Times s.nigo

SANTIAGO, Chile —

The United States formally

. Wednesday of three former
*’%% members of the Chilean se-
CONTRERAS  cret police indicted for mur-
der in the assassination of a Chilean Marxist
. exile and his American secretary in Washing-
ton.

U.S. Ambassador George W. Landau hand-
ed the extradition request to Foreign Minister
Hernan Cubillos one day short of two years
after a bomb exploded in the automobile of Qr-
lando Leteliel;Zkilling him and Ronni K. Moffit.

Letelier had served as Chile’s ambassador
to Washington and as minister of foreign af-
fairs and defense in the cabinet of the late
President Salvador Allende, whose Marxist ad-
ministration was violently overthrown by mili-
tary revolution five years ago.

The United States wants to bring to trial

en. nuel Contreras{ former secret police
chief, and two of his subordinates, Col. Pedro
Espinoza _dnd Capt. Armando Fernandez® All

‘were army officers assigned to Chile’s intelli-
gence service known by its Spanish acronym
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requested the extradition .

Chile Asked to Extradite Trio

as DINA until it was dissalved last year and re-'
placed by another agency.

“WE EXPECT that Chilean justice will con-
cede the‘extraditions requested,” Landau said
after delivering the petition, which included
about 400 pages of supporting evidence.

The embassy received the extradition pack-
age from Washington last week. Afterward, it
was reviewed by Chilean lawyer Alfredo

Echeverry to assure that it conformed to Chil-

ean legal Spanish. Echeverry has been retained
by the United States to represent it in the ex-
tradition proceedings before the Chilean Su-
preme Court.

Contreras, Espinoza and Fernandez were

- indicted Aug. 1 by a Washington grand jury

acting on evidence that-included testimony by
Michael V. Townley,”35, an American expatri-
ate and former agent of Chile’s secret police.

Townley said that he armed the fatal bomb
and placed it in Letelier’s automobile. The
bomb was exploded by a remote device, con-
sisting mainly of a radio call-pager, while Lete-

‘lier was driving his car on a Washington street

Sept. 21, 1976. Five Cuban exiles were indicted
for activatmg the device.

TOWNLEY, WHO plea'-bargained with the

~ dictments were handed up. Contreras and Espi-

I

Justice Department in exchange for his testi- ‘
mony, was arraigned in Washington in August

. as were three of the Cubans. Two Cubans are

still at large.

Letelier was jailed here after Allende’s fall.
He was later exiled and deprived of his Chilean
citizenship. He was a leader of exiles working
in the United States against Chile’s military.
junta.

Contreras headed DINA during the plan-
ning and execution of Letelier's assassination.
Espinoza was DINA'’s chief of operations.

All three were detained here when the in-

noza are under house arrest. Fernandez is held
at the military hospital here.

The extradition request and supporting evi-
dence now go to the Supreme Court, sole legal
body empowered to rule on such requests
under Chilean law. The procedure involves two
steps.,

Chief Justice Israel Borquez, acting as a
judge of original jurisdiction, first hears argu-
ments and receives briefs from both sides. He
may also question the accused and any wit-
nesses they cite in support of their cases.

Borquez's decision is automatically re- |
viewed by a panel of other Supreme Court jus~
tices, whose ruling is final.

septeamber 7.'\. AR
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Entire Letelier Case

Handed Over to qI(Q;hile

ol S
In Extradition Bld%ﬂ |

By JOHN DINGES
~ Speclal to The Herald
SANTIAGO, Chile — Much of
what U.S. investigators have
learned about the assassination of
leftist ilean
exile lando
Letelier "1s con-
tained in a 25-
pound box of
documents hand-
ed over to the
Chilean govern
ment. :
The docu-
ments are part of the Justice De-
partment’s case to back up a U.S.
request for the extradition o?&

tired Gen. Manuel Contreras, for-
mer head of the Chilean secret.po-
lice, and two of his suberdinates.
All three were indicted last month
on murder and conspiracy charges
in the car-bomb slaying of Letelier
in Washington on Sept. 21, 1976.
The bulky package of papers,
elaborately encased in leather-and-
wood binders with brass rivets and
ribbons to prevent tampering, were

gescribed b,j’f one inves‘tig.ator" as @ ‘ed arrangements for Chilean sup-
bombshell™ for the Chile’s military port of anti-Castro activities in ex-

government. : change for “hits” against Pinochet’s

THE ALREADY volatile political C°PPenents abroad.

climate here is expected to become =~ ANOTHER SOURCE said he had
more tense as the Chilean court de- been told by someone who had read
cides whether to reveal evidence in the documents that they contain in-
the extradition documents that is formation about the assassination in
potentially damaging to the govern- Buenos Aires of exiled Chilean Gen,
ment and whether to'extradite the - Carlos Prat in September 1974 and
three officers, Persons in Washing- the unsuccessful attempt to kill out-
ton who are familiar with the case gpoken Christian Democratic leader

NEWS
ANALYSIS

Gen. Manuel Contreras
... secret police chief

have stressed that only Chileans Bernardo Leighton in September

may make extradition documents ' 1975. That could not be verified.
public at this point. " The sources close to the investiga-
If the Chilean Supreme Court fol- tion were willing to say that the

lows past procedures in extradition documents contain “new names,
cases, the files should be routinely pew pictures.”

made avallaple to thg public during “It's important that Contreras
the proceedings, which are expect- gets brought back, but it’s even

ed to start soon. ’

With revelation of the evidence,
the complicated international plot
1o assassinate Letelier would be vir-
tually unraveled for the public be-
fore the murder trial in Washing-
ton. A federal judge recently told

lawyers that the trial there would

begin Jan. 8.
Sources said the evidence submit-
ted for the extradition proceedings
| covers all of the U.S. case except
fa» relatjvely minor detfaile concern-

2973

- more important that the facts get .

out,” said ‘one of the sources.

The delivery of the documents
and the extradition request brought
the focus of the two-year investiga-

{
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tion back to Chile two years after

the car bombing, which killed Lete-
lier, 44, and an associate, Ronni
Moffitt, 26, as they were driving to
work in Washington.

LETELIER WAS an exile leader

~nf annacitinn ta the militara Greaéa .
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ing five members of a Cuban-exile
ﬁwp % also were indicted in the
documents are intended

Id an overwhelming case for

the extraditions and head off any
possibility that the Chilean court

might rule that the evidence was in-
su nt, the sources said.

is what you have been
wai for,” said one source, add-

ing that the evidence, although all

of it is relevant to the Letelier as-
sassination, touches on other terror-
it:l; activities in other foreign coun-
“!ﬂi have 'the answers to your
,” he said when asked

whethar the documents will discuss
an "eumn-c\:m ‘connec-
tion,” is said to have includ-

Tl VR pUDLwvie U ERE HMGTa Yy Juina

Jed by Gen. Augusto

Pinochet. The
regime took power in a bloody 1973
coup against the late President Sal-
vador Allende’s Marxist-oriented
government, which Letelier had
served as ambassador to Washing-
ton, foreign minister and deteme

minister.
Contreras, being held under

‘house arrest, headed the military

government’s National Directorate
of Intelligence (DINA), which coor-
dinated anti-subversive action until
it was reorganized and glvon anoth- |
er name last year. '

The other DINA officers named
ln the. extradltlon request are _G_Ql,

oza and . Ar
Th ey are un%‘er arrest at
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Chile Judge’s Ruling
In Extmda;tim‘i Case
Miffs U.S ",","_.i_.ffwmls W

WASHINGTON —_ (AP) —_ The State .Department expressed con-
cern Thursday about a decision by a Chilean judge that could affect the
outcome of U.S. efforts to extradite three Chileans wanted in the 1976
slaying of a former Chilean ambassador.

Chilean Supreme Court President Israel Borqiiez has ruled that the
Chilean attorney who is x:epresentl‘ng the United States, Alfredo Etche-

¢ berry, may not take part in hearings on the
case.

Department spokesman  Kenneth
Brown called the decision “unprecedented
‘in Chilean.legal practice. We are naturally
concerned thgg our interests be properly
represemed

, that the government is
closelymomno the proceedings in Chile
and “expects that it will be handled in a

nounced it was see ing the extradition of a
former head of the Chilean secret police,
| Contreras Sepulveda,

Y S ;
LETELIER The three'are wanted in the car-bom-
bing assassination of former Chilean bassador Orlando Letelxer, an
outspoken critic of Chile’s militar: pgﬂfm
Brown denied a published report that tl}g United States was so dis-
tressed by Borquez s ruling that it considered withdrawing its extradi-
tion demand in favor of exerting st‘i‘bng diplomatic pressure on Chile.

% ,
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manner w “falr, Just and expedxtious
for all parties. :
‘Last A aﬂmlnfstratnon ‘an- .

Aor

[7%

ol



U.S. Denied Publlc Hearmgs in Chile

On Extradltlons in Leté ler’s Slaylng

By JOHN DINGES

| Special fo The Herald
i SANTIAGO, Chile — The United
|States has lost its legal battle here
\for public hearings on its request to
-extradite three former Chilean se-
cret police officials wanted for the
assassination of Orlando Letelier.

The Chilean Supreme Court Wed-
nesday denied a U.S. appeal against
a secrecy rule imposed by the the
judge in charge of the extradition
procedures. The judge, Supreme
Court President Israel Boérquez,

ruled that the U.S. extradition re-

quest, and 'evidence presented by
the U.S. Justice Department to
prove its case, required a “summa-
ry” investigation. In Chilean crimi-
nal law, that indicates a closed in-
-quiry of indefinite duration con-
ducted alone by the presiding judge,
who personally interrogates wit-
nesses.

THE CHILEAN military govern-
ment, in a statement by Justice
Minister Mobnica Madariaga, an-
nounced — before the U.S. appeal
was heard — its agreement with
the decision to conduct the inquiry
secretly. Court officials have told
Chilean reporters that the extradi-
tion case is considered to be ex-
tremely complicated and could take
as long as a year.

The United States has asked for
extradition of retired Gen. Manuel
Contreras,/the former head of the
Chi }al n secret police, and two sub-

ordinate officers, Col. Pedro Espino-
nd Capt. Armando Fernandez.
They were indicted along with five
members of a Cuban exile group on
Aug. 2 by a U.S. district court on
charges of conspiring to murder
Letelier, an exile opponent of
Chile’s government, and his associ-
ate Ronni Moffitt.
Letelier was Chile’s ambassador
to the United States and a cabinet
‘minister in the government of Pres-

Gen. Contreras’
<.« ex-secret police chief

ident Salvador Allende, a Marxist
deposed by a coup in September
1973. He was killed by a car bomb
in Washington in September 1976.

THE SECRECY in the extradition
hearings means that a bulky packet

of hundreds of pages of sworn testi--

mony, photos and other documents
presented by the United States to
the court will be kept from the
press. The Chilean lawyer hired by
the United States will be barred
from some of the proceedings.

The lawyer, Alfredo Echeberry,

argued in his appeal that the U.S.
case will be hurt if he is kept from

/hearing the judge’s interrogation of

witnesses, and barred from cross-
examining them and challenging
their credibility.

A State Department spokesman
said last week he had been in-
formed that the barring of the U.S.
lawyer was “unprecedented” and
that the U.S. government was
watching the proceedings closely.

An editorial in the newspaper El

Mercurio, a major backer of the
military government, said the U.S.
statement was due to ignorance of
Chilean law. A Supreme Court offi-
cial subsequently showed reporters
a pile of about a dozen past extradi-
‘tion cases that he said also had a se-
‘éret inquiry stage and showed that
Judge Bérquez’ handling of the
‘Letelier extradition was not unprec-
edented.

Before the present military gov-

ernment came to power, however,.

the courts seemed to interpret the
secrecy of the mquu'y stage more
hberally.

THE CURRENT DISPUTE over
secrecy involves more than legal

technicalities and interrogation pro-

cedures.
The denial of public hearings

could delay for months the public

unraveling of the Letelier assassina-

Dionisio Sué.rez/and Virgilio 14.
are fugitives.

In its ruling denying the U.S. ap-
peal, the Chilean Supreme Court
upheld Bérquez' contention that
Echeberry has no legal right to de-
mand participation in the proceed-
ings until the judge declares the in-
quiry completed. However, the
court also said that the secrecy of
the inquiry “is not absolute” and “is
not as strict as insinuated by the
lawyer of the government of the

‘United States.”

The court said the presiding
judge will hear the lawyer’s request
and may decide to grant him “full
or partial” information about the
progress of the inquiry.

tion. The two-year investigation is ;

already known to have touched sev-

eral Latin American countries be-
sides Chile and uncovered evidence

on other terrorist activities involv-

ing Cuban exiles and the Chilean se-
<cret police.

The FBI considers the case |

solved, and sources in Washington
said its best evidence is included in |
the documents sent to Chile. How- |
ever, officials say they are forbid-
den by U.S. law from revealing the |

evidence before trial in the United
States. 3

THE TRIAL IS scheduled to
begin Jan. 8 in Washington. If, as it
now appears, the extradition pro-
ceedings here are not completed be-
fore then, the defendents af the trial
will include only three offthe eight
persons indicted for theé murder.
They\é'e Guillermo Novo and Alvin
Ross, who are in FBI custody, and
Ignacio Novo,/ who is free on
&BT ail. Two other Cuban ex-

iles accused of the murder, José

f )
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General Charged in Letelier Murder

Has Comes of Evidence,

By JOHN DlNGES
Special To The Herald

SANTIAGO, Chile — Documents
containing the U.S. evidence about
the murder of QOrlando Letelier and
declared secret by a Chilean co
reportedly have been obtain%
retired Gen. Manuel Contreras, th
former hea: iléan secret
police who has been indicted for the
.crime.

Copies of the documentary evi-
dence to back up a U.S. request for
the extradition of Contreras and
two other secret police officers
were seen in Contreras’ hands by
persons with access to Santiago’s
Military Hospital where the three
officers are being held.

A court official said the docu-
ments are kept “under lock and key
in strictest secrecy” in the office of

Supreme Court Judge Israel Bor- .

quez, who is handling the extradi-

tion proceedings. “It couldn’t “be.

They didn’t get it here,” the official
said.

A SOURCE who saw the docu-
ments and was able to describe
their contents said Contreras and
his lawyer spend much of their day
poring over the papers to prepare
for questioning by Bérquez.

The interrogation of the accused
by the presiding judge — a step that
in past extradition cases-took place
within hours of the defendant’s ar-
rest — has not yet been conducted
by Bérquez in the three weeks since
the extradition request was pre-

Miamy ©becold
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‘Legally, at this stage,
it would be impossible
for the defendants to
have access to the evi-
dence  accompanying
the demand for extra-
dtuon.
— U. 8. lawyer Alfredo
Echeberry

*

- sented to the court Sept. 21.

It was learned that three photo-
static copies of at least 500 pages of
the U. S. documents were seen and
handled by persons close to Contr-
eras within a week of their delivery
to the Chilean foreign ministry by
U.S. ambassador Walter Landau.

THE CHILEAN Supreme Court
last week upheld Boérquez’ ruling

that the extradition proceedings

would be secret, thus denying the
defendants and the press immediate
access to the evidence and barring

* *

* %

Gen. Manuel Contreras
N preparing casg?

all parties, including the lawyer for
the United States, from knowledge
of the proceedings.

The U. S. lawyer, Alfredo Eche-
berry, said he had no comment on
the report that Contreras had ob-
tained the documents. But he said
that “legally, at this stage, it would
be impossible for the defendants to
have access to the evidence accom-
panying the demand for extradi-
tion.”

Contreras and twﬁbordinates,

Col. Pedro Espinosag”and Capt. Ar-
~mando Fernandezwere indicted by

Ockover

Sources Say

a federal court for conspiring to

murder Letelier and an associate

Ronni Moffitt in a car bombing
Sept. 21, 1976, while they were
driving to work in Washington, D

C. Letelier, a former Chilean Am-
bassador to the United States, was a
leader of exile opposition to the mil-
itary regime of President Augosto
Pinochet.

CONTRERAS WAS placed in

charge of organizing Chile’s vast

secret police apparatus, known as’

DINA, to fight leftist resistance to
the military government after it
came to power in a September 1973

-military coup that deposed Socialist

President Salvador Allende. The U.
S. indictment accuses Contreras, as
head of the secret police, of having
ordered Letelier’s murder which
was carried out by DINA officers
and five Cuban exiles.

The United States, in appeals by
Echeberry, challenged the judge’s
secrecy rule but lost the appeals.

A U.S. official said in Washing-
ton several weeks ago that normal-
ly the U.S. prosecutor would prefer
to keep the details of his case secret
from the defendants as long as pos-
sible in order to make it more diffi-
cult to fabricate alibis.

IT was felt, because of its impor-
tance, that the Letelier case should
be allowed to be aired in public in

Chile, even though the FBI is for- |

bidden by U. S. law from releasing
evidence before the trial, scheduled
for Jan. 8 in Washington.
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Letelier
Puts Blam

.-A\"J By JOHN DINGES
. Special to The Herald

SANTIAG®, Chile Retired
Chilean Ger. Manuel Contreras Se-
pulveda;” charged by the United

tates with the 1976 murder of Or-
lando Letelier, is pointing the finger
of blame back to the United States
and the CIA. . -

Contreras, former director of the
Chilean secret police organization
known as DINA, kept a stony si-
lence in the face of accusations
against him until last week.

On Tuesday, wearing a business
suit and a smile, he strode into San-
tiago’s supreme court building and
launched his counterattack.

Surrounded by security guards,

¢ said to be men personally loyal to
the ex-general, Contreras entered

the chambers of supreme court-

president Israel Borquez. Contreras
had come to the court from Santia-
go’s military hospital, where he is
held under preventive arrest, to de-
fend himself against still-secret FBI
evidence - submitted to support a
U.S. request to extradite him and
two DINA subordinates.

HE TOLD reporters that he is just
as innocent of the Letelier murder
as he is of the assassinations of
John F. Kennedy and Martin Luther

King. He“declared that Michael
Townley, the American expatriate

who has confessed to having ar-
ranged Leteler’s assassination on
DINA orders, “is an agent, but a
CIA agent, not a DINA agent.”

The United States has denied that
Townley-had anything but sporadic
contacts with the CIA. Justice De-
partment officials have said the
raising of the CIA issue by Chile is a
“smokescreen.” Townley is cooper-
ating with the U.S. investigation as
a material witness. ¢

Letelier, a former Chilean ambas-
sador to the United States under the
late Marxist President Salvador Al-

_ lende, was a leading exile opponent
of the military government that

» seized power from Allende in 1973.
Letelier and an associate, Ronni
Moffitt, died when a bomb blew up
in Letelier’s car as they drove along
a V\éashington street on Sept. 21,
1976. ;

A CHILEAN source, who claims.

to be privy to the Chilean side of

e
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Murder

to- DO

Gen. Contreras
3 .+« claims innocence

the Letelier case and to much of the
U.S. side, said DINA officers have
testified before an Chilean army
judge who is conducting a -parallel
secret investigation related to the
case. : .
The testimony to Gen. Héctor Or-
ozco has not been made available to
the U.S. investigators, the source
said. o ¢

Another source, who has read the
700-page packet of testimony and
evidence presented by the United
States, said Townley did not direct-
ly implicate Contreras in the mur-
der. Townley’s testimony, the
source renp]o/rlt;d(sa'ys he got his or-
‘ders fro INA agent Armando
Fernéndez and Col. Pedro Espinoza,
former DINA chief of operations.

Ferndndez, however, has given
testimony that he received orders
from Contreras to work with
“Townley, the source said. He said
Fernandez talked to an FBI agent
early this year and later answered a
set of questions sent by the United
States to Chile in a court-to-court
investigative procedure called let-
ters rogatory. L

CONTRERAS, FERNANDEZ, Es-
_pinoza, Townley and five members
of a Cuban exile group were indict-
ed for the murder last August by a

. U.S. court.

The source. gave this account of

material contained in the U.S. dossi-
er: :
Fernédndez testified that Contrer-

Sus

as ordered him to go to Paraguay in
July 1976 to obtain false passports
and visas In preparation for a two-
man mission with Townley to the
United States. Fernandez said he
was ordered by Contreras in late
August to go to Washington.
Fernandez has refused to tell in-
vestigators the reason for the mis-

pect
e on U.S., CIA

sion to the United States, but Town- |

ley, who was Fernandez’ partner on
the trip to Paraguay, said both mis-
sions were part of the operation to
kill Letelier. :

Townley testified that Fernan-
dez’ mission was to obtain informa-
tion about Letelier’s car and route
to work, and to report the informa-
tion to Townley, who then carried
out the bombing with the assistance
of the Cuban exiles.

TOWNLEY’S TESTIMONY that
he exchanged information with Fer-
nandez at John F. Kennedy Airport
in New York is backed up by testi-
mony by an employe of LAN-Chile,
the Chlean airline, who said LAN-

Chile offices were used for the -

meeting.

After returning to Chile Sept. 9,
Fernandez said in his testimony that
he met Contreras on a street in the
port city of San Antonio and report-
ed on his mission. Fernandez re-
fused to say in his testimony what
his mission was.

Townley’s and Fernandez’ first
mission to obtain false passports
and visas in Paraguay was badly
botched and became known inside

NA as ‘“‘the Paraguay messup” (la
embarrada de Paraguay).

Paraguayan Benito Guanes told
the FBI that the two-men were
given official Paraguayan passports
under false names in response to a
telegraphed request from Gen.
Contreras, who signed the coded
message ‘“Condor L.”

Guanes said he became worried
about the nature of the DINA
agents’ mission to the United States
and, after Townley and Fernandez
had returned to Chile, telephoned
Contreras and demanded that the

. passports be returned in the next

diplomatic pouch.

The abortive Paraguayan mission
provided the United States with
pictures of Townley and Fernandez,
and ultimately led to their identifi-
cation. !
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Judge Orders the CIA:

Tl

Dzsavow Slaymg Role

WASHINGTON — (UPI) — A
federal judge asked the CIA Mon-
day to state in writing that it had
no connection to an alleged Chilean
secret police plot resulting in the
1976 assassmatuzyof Chilean exile
Orlando Letelier

istrict Judge Barrington
Parker told prosecutors to mak
sure the CIA’s affidavit is “ve
* clear, unambiguous, unequivocal.”

Parker also directed the govern-
ment to submit its evidence against
three former Chilean secret police
officials charged with ordering
Letelier’s murder.

The 700-page government dossier

is reported to include evidence of

other political assassinations or-

dered by the Chilean secret police

agency, DINA.

. Chile’s Supreme Court has yet to
rule on whether former DINA chief
Manuel Contreras Sepulveda and

two of his top aides should be ex-
tradited to the United States to
stand trial for the Letelier murder.

Parker is proceeding toward a

Jan. 8 trial for three anti-Castro Cu-
bans charged in connection with
the assassination. /They include
Alvin _Ross Diaz and Guillermo

Novo Sam;&l,qccused of providing

wit exp_llosives for the mur-

der, and Sampol’s brother, Ignacio,
accused of lying to a grand jury.

Defense lawyers have asked Par-

ker to order the CIA to provide any

files that might link it to the alleged
Chilean secret police conspiracy.

P Lo N \'b_Q_(&_KA

Orlando Letelier
e.. slain in 1976
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Leaks in Letelier Case May Tt

By JOHN DINGES
Special fo The Herald

SANTIAGO, Chile — Despite a
court secrecy order, there have
been leaks about U.S. documents
supporting a request for the extra-
dition of Chile’s former chief of se-
cret police, who is charged in the
Washington assassination of l¢ftist.
' Chilean exile Orlando Letelie

One leak this week revealed that
the United States has presented evi-
dence that Cuban exiles charged in
the Letelier case came to Chile for
secret police training before the
1976 slaying.

One way or another, the leaks
may turn into a flood.

A CHILEAN lawyer representing
the United States in the extradition
proceedings has presented motions
seeking a court reversal of the se-
crecy order. The lawyer, Afredo Et-
cheberry, says he is “free” to make
the U.S. documents publi¢ and may
‘do so if the secrecy order is left
standing.

“T am not bound by the secrecy
ruling. I can decide to release evi-
dence accordingly as I feel it will
help our case,” Etcheberry said in
an interview. .

Israel Borquez, the Supreme
Court’s chief justice, imposed the
secrecy rule Friday. Late Tuesday,
the Supreme Court denied Etche-
berry’s moticn to delay extradition
proceedings while an appeal on the
secrecy issue is pending. A decision.
on Etcheberry’s appeal is expected
before the end of the week.

Chilean President Augusto Pino-
chet steadfastly has denied involve-
ment by his government in the mur-
der of Letelier, a former Chilean
ambassador to the United States
and cabinet minister under the late
President Salvador Allende, a
Marxist. After Allende was over-
thrown in 1973, Letelier became an

Orlando Letelier .
eos killed in 1976

exile leader of the opposition to Pi-,
nochet.

THE UNITED States is request-
ing the extradit;o?o‘f retired Gen.

Manuel Contreras, the former se-
cret police chief, and two subordi-
nate officers. All three have been
indicted in Washington.

The U.S. extradition request is
backed by hundreds of pages of
documents, pictures and film,
which sources say contain informa-
tion that will be politically damag-

ing to Chile’s military government. -

The secrecy ruling was justified
by Bérquez’s office as necessary to
prevent a “public commotion” if the
hearings were public.

The ruling would keep evidence
presented by the United States from
public scrutiny in the court, and bar
the lawyer for the United States
from hearings in which any new
evidence is presented, Etcheberry
said. He said the ruling also would
deny him the chance to crossexam-
ine new witnesses.

President Pinochet
oo« denies involvement

El Mercurio, Chile’s major daily
newspaper, called in an editorial
Sunday for the hearings to be be
public.

THE SECRECY ruling was not
expected and its imposition is
known to have upset U.S. Embassy
officials here.

Sources here and in Washington

said the United States had been as-
sured that the extradition request

"would be treated as a ‘“‘purely judi-

¢ial matter.” s

They said the understanding was
that past extradition procedures
would be followed — meaning that
hearings would be publi¢c and that
the voluminous U.S. evidence
would be open to the press as soon
as the case entered the court.

Etcheberry said he has copies of
the most important parts of the U.S.
case. The originals, included in a
25-pound box of evidence presented
to the Chileans, have been locked

up in a safe in Bérquez's office, a
court official said.

ETCHEBERRY said he “will be
able to release most of the docu-
ments” he has once the three ac-
cused officers are questioned in the
extradition hearings. The lawyer
said he does not want to reveal his
case earlier and give the officers
added time to prepare rebuttals.

The documents, according to per-
sons who have read them, contain
evidence that some of the five
Cuban exiles accused in the killing
were in Chile a few weeks before
the murder receiving training from
the secret police, known then by |,
the acronym DINA. -

The key document is g.confession
by Michael Townley,~An American
expatriate who said he worked as a
DINA agent in the assassination
plot. Townley, who pleaded guilty
to conspiracy in the assassination, is
in custody in the United States.

Two of the indicted Cuban exiles
are in custody, one is out on bail, -
and two are fugitives.

1
- INFORMED SOURCES said the !
FBI has received testimony from #<C
witness who sawfone of the Cu'e
bans, Virgilio Paz, in Townley’'s
Santiago house in July 1976, two
months before the murder. Paz is a
fugitive.

According to Indictments re-
turned in early August by a U.S
grand jury, the Cubans, members j
the Cuban_ Nationalist Movemept,
met with Townley in New Jersey in
September 1976. From there they
went with him to Washington,
where they assembled a bomb and ,
attached it under Letelier’s car, the
indictments say. They indicate that
one of the Cubans detonated the
bomb by remote control, Kkilling
Letelier and Ronni Moffitt, an asso-
ciate who was riding with him
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irn Into Flood

The U.S. extradition re-

quest is backed by hun-
dreds of pages of docu-
ments, pictures and film,
which sources say con-
tain information that
will be politically dam-
aging to Chile’s military
government.

through Washington’s Embassy
Row.

The dispute over whether extra-
dition proceedings here should be
publia is only one of several inci-
dents that have dismayed U.S. offi-
cials, a diplomat said. He also noted
that a Chilean press and television
campaign began several weeks ago
defending Contreras and portraying
the CIA as the real culprit in the
Letelier murder.

THE DIPLOMAT said he suspects
that the Chilean government is be-
hind the campaign, which he feels
s an attempt to_influence the court.

Rafael Otero, a commentator
who appears regularly on the gov-
ernment-owned television channel,
has said Townley was a “known”

"CIA agent. Otero was the Chilean

Embassy’s press attache in Wash-
ington when Letelier was assassi=
nated on Sept. 21, 1976.

Contreras’ defense lawyer has
made similar statements linking the
CIA to the slaying. Monday he an-
nounced he will attempt to have the
court subpena U.S. Ambassador
George Landau to testify. Although
the announcement was seen as only
a ploy, since Landau is protected by
diplomatic immunity, the subpena
could be used in attempts to embar-
rass Landau in Chile if he refuses to
testify.

As ambassador to Paraguay in
1976, two months before the Leteli-
er assassination, Landau notified
U.S. intelligence that two men he
suspected of being DINA agents on
an 'illegal mission unsuccessfully
had sought visas from the U.S. con-
sulate in Asuncion.

Later it was revealed that the
two men were Townley and Capt.
Armando Fernandez, ‘one of the
DINA officers whose extradition
from Chile now is being sought.




Bishop’s Tip Leads &

‘To Bodies in Mine ,x

SANTIAGO, Chile — (AP) — A
Roman Catholic bishop has directed

Chilean authorities to an unrevealed

- number of bodies in an abandoned
mine, reported-

of the confes-
sion of a former
secret  police
agent.

Supreme
Court president
Israel Borquez
ordered a crim-
inal judge to in-
vestigate after
_ : Auxiliary Bish-
1 Rl op Enrique Al-

CONTRER vear of Santia-
. go presented a written report on
- what he saw at the mine 25 miles
. southwest of here.

i Y ¢ IS A serious situation. For
. that I made the denunciation to the
. court,” Bishop Alvear said Tuesday.

. His action stirred rumors that the
. bodies could be of some of the more
-than 600 leftists who have disap-
peared since the military overthrew
the late Marxist President Salvador
Allende in 1973. The missing, who

ly on the basis

have not figured on lists of those
killed or impriSoned, are said by
their families to have been seen last
in the hands of agents of the now-

Brig’ Gen. Juan Manuel Contrer-
as, who directed the A, 1S now
undergoing an extradition hearing
at the request of the United States,
which wants to.try him on charges
of ordering the 1976 bomb murd
in Washington of exiled Chile
cialist Orlando Letelier.

AS IS usual in criminal cases, the
court declared the mine investiga-
tion process secret and did not
make public the contents of the
bishop’s report. Fhe church hierar-
chy, the government and two law-
yers who accompanied Bishop "Al-
vear to the mine also declined to
discuss the case, but parts of the
story have been pieced together
from various sources.’

The sources said the information
reached Bishop Alvear through a

dissolved secret police unit known |
as t.h?NFA.

priest who took a confession about

10" days ago. Some of the sources
said the person confessing was an
ex-DINA agent who then left the

country. : ,
Dec: b, A1}
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LetelierAssassination Evidence

Seized lllegally,

'?7 0\ By TOM FIEDLER
Herald Washington Bureau /

WASHINGTON — The FBI illegally obtained evi-
denceAhat possibly links a Cuban exile defendant to the
assas$ination of former Chilean diplomat Orlapdo Lete-
_lier, defense attorneys argued Thursday.

" The -contested evidence includes some parts for

- making a bomb similar to the one that killed Letelier
on Sept. 21, 1976, as he was driving to work in down-
town Washington.

It also includes a sales receipt from a New York
City electronics store for the purchase of a paging de-
vice. Government prosecutors contend the device was
used to detonate the bomb that had been fastened to
the underside of Letelier’s car.

The evidence was seized by FBI agents when they
were called to a a?Z:ted ffice above a store in Union
City, N.J., that had been’leased to a Cuban exile named

_Carlos P. Garcia.
: ederal prosecutors contend that Garcia is an alias

 for Alvin Rgss Diaz, one of the three Cuban defendants
' whose trial in connection with Letelier’s assassination

Court Is Tol/di

began here on Tuesday.

Ross and Guillermo Novo Sampol, both of Union
City, have been indicted for allegedly joining with
Townley — the government's key witness, who al-
ready has pleaded guilty — in carrying out the murder.
It was ordered by high-level Chilean government offi-
cials, the prosecutors allege.

's brother lIgnacio, who lives in Miami. is
charged with withholding knowledge of the assassina-
tion consplracy from federal officials and lying to a
federal grand jury.

U.S. District Judge Barrington Parker Jr. interrupt-
ed the laborious process of selecting a jury late Thurs-
c¢ay to hear arguments on the defense motion to keep
the items seized by the FBI in the Union City office
from being used against the Cubans.

Parker listened to about two hours of arguments,
then delayed ruling until today or possibly Monday.

Federal prosecutor Eugene Propper has contended
that the items seized in the Union City office forge a
crucial link in the chain of evidence tying the Cuban
exiles to the assassination conspiracy.

\\\\\"\‘\
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Letelier Jury Selection Hindered;

‘b TOM FIEDLER
Horlld Washington Bureau X

WASHINGTON — Selection of a
jury to try three Cuban exiles in the
assassination case of former Chil-
ean diplomat Orlando Letelier bog-
ged down as potential
jurors sakf th? knew about the
event.

, Of 125 mons*avquab for jury
duty, 85 s%eﬁd they had either read
of, or h ut, the assassination
by bomV hat ore than
two' years ago on ﬁable Em-
bassy Row here. !

Fifty-five of them ton Judge Bar-

rington Patker Jr. that their knowl- g

edge extended beyond a simple °
awareness of the killing, which was
reported a;ound ‘the world. 3

ft one-time member
lean government
of Salvadore Allende, who was

overthrown in a 1973 milltary coup, -
died when a bomb attached to the

chassis -of his .car exploded as he
drove to work at the Institute for

International Policy Studies. .

A young assistant, Ronni K. Mof-
fitt, also died in the explosion.

Justice Department prosecutors
have alleged that the bombing was
ordered by DINA, the Chilean se=
cret police and carried out by
Cuban exiles under the direction of
DINA agent Michael Townley, an
American expatriate.

Townley, who has pleaded guilty
to a lesser charge, is the govern-.
ment’s key witness.

Two of the three Cubans on trial
are charged with assisting Townley
in the bombing. They are Guillermo
Novo Sampol and Alvin Ross Diaz
both of Union City, N.J.

Ebo(af\d
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Prospects F amllmr

The third, w&
— brother of Guillermo —

charged with withholding knowl-

* edge of the assassination plot and of

lying to a federal grand jury investi-
gating Letelier’'s death.
Novo lives in Miami.

TWO OTHER Cuban militants
and three high-ranking DINA offi-
cials in Chile also were named in

the er indictment.  However,
the t bans so far have eluded a
WO 7ide manhunt and the three

. Chilean agents have not been extra-

dited by their government.

nesday questioning each of the 55
jury panelists who : proféssed

knowledge of the crime to deter-

mine if that knowledge would prej-
udice their decision as jurors.

His questioning is expected to
continue through today.

Only one juror was dismissed
Wednesday, however. ‘and he ad-
mitted knowing,Leteller personally.
He was not identified by the court.

The questioning was done in Par-
ker’s chambers without, any report-
ers present. One participant in the
proceeding said only a few of the
almost three dozen questioned dur-
ing the day showed an awareness of
tl;ie international implications of the
crime. :

“IT WAS a horrible crime,” the
participant said. “Here a guy has
his legs blown.off and a young girl

" dies by choking to death on her

own blood.
“It was sensational news. But
that’s about all they know of it.”
Prospective jurors also are being
asked if they are familiar with the

Ignacio *

Judge Parker spent the day Wed-

With Case
//?\H' | [ulq

A’s activities in Chile between
1966 and 1973. For the last three
years of that period, the CIA has
admitted participating in actions to
undermine the Marxist administra-
tion of Allende.

A key defense strategy will be an
attempt to show that Townley was
a double-agent — acting for both
the CIA and DINA — and' carried
out the assassination himself.

Townley has admitted placmg
the bomb, but said he was doing it

.on orders from the head of DINA in

Chile.

That defense theory may have re-
ceived a boost Wednesday. The
Washington Star, quoting unnamed
sources, said Townley had been
cleared — but never used — by the
CIA as an operative in Chile.

. IN AN AFFIDAVIT filed last
month, the CIA admitted that
Townley had approached the agen-
cy office in Miami on three occa-
sions, in 1970 and in 1973, offering
his "assistance.: Those offers. were
not accepted, the affidavit said.

Security surrounding the trial is
extraordinarily rigid. At one point
late Tuesday, bomb-sniffing dogs
were taken into a bathrooni near
Judge Parker’s courtroem because
guards ‘found a sticker with the
name Omega 7 on it.

“Omega 7 is a secret Cuban exile
terrorist group that has claimed
credit for several bombings in New
York and Miami, including some
that have caused deaths.

The judge and prosecutor Eugene
Propper also - have been placed
under 24-hour guard because of al-
leged death threats.
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007’ Comes e

)
d\ By TOM FIEDLER
Heraid Washington Bureau
WASHINGTON — The story in-
cludes the stuff of James Bond plots
more suited to a novel than a U.S.
District courtroom.

There are alleged international
assassination schemes, Cuban exile
terrorists, remote-controlled
bombs, elaborate cover ‘stories, a
“mole” (double agent) buried deep
within a foreign government’s se-
cret police and — most intriguing
of all — a frame-up by the CIA to
divert blame from itself.

But this is no novel.

These elements and others un-
folded Monday in a U.S. District
Court during opening arguments in
the trial of three Cuban exiles
charged in connection with the

In a U.S. Courtroom

Propper in graphic detail, remains
uncontested:

“On Sept. 21, 1976, at 9 a.m., Or-

lando Letelier left his home ... to
travel to his job with a young mar-
ried couple,” Propper intoned in a
dispassionate voice.

“A bomb, which had been strap-
ped to the floorboard of the car,
was set off . . .. It was so powerful.
Orlando Letelier’s legs were de-
stroyed and they were never recov-
ered.

... He died at Sheridan Circle,”
Propper continued. ““Ronnie Moffit
(a passenger in the car) suffocated
...on her own blood.”

The rest of the story, including
who is responsible for what law-
yers agreed was a ‘‘monstrous”
crime, is in sharp dispute.

Propper and a federal grand jury

bombing assassination of formep"allege that Letelier was assassinat-

Chilean diplomat Orlando Letelier.
So far only the ending, as out-
lined by federal prosecutor Eugene

L
rYSSL & na g

tbe Tc\»\A

ed by militant Cuban exiles under
the direction of Michael Townley,
an American expatriate who at the

3-93 - bl

‘Sampo

Michael Townley
... on cenler stago

time was working for the Chilean
secret police age DINA.

Two of t defendants, Alvin
Ross Diaz “and Guillermo Novo
of New Jersey, are
arged with carrying out the as-

Turn to Page 16A Col. 1
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Letelier Trial Has the Air
Of a James Bond Thriller

_mmm PAGE 1A

'sassmatlon plot. They are pr
nent members of the milita ban
Nationalistic Movement/a’ violently
“anfi-Communist greup.
The third
Novo Sampdl

efendant I naclo
f Miami, is c|

with lying to a federal grand ]ury "

about his knowledge of the crime
and with helping the other defen-
dants elude capture. He is the
brother of Guillermo.
The government’s key witness is
Townley, 35, who has pleaded guil-
to planting the bomb and direct-

ing the Cuban exiles in the plot.

Townley also claims that he is a
DINA agent.

: DEFENSE ATTORNEY . Paul
Goldberger told the jury of seven
women and five men Monday that
‘the assassination was conceived and
carried out by the CIA as part of a

plan to silence critics of the Chilean

military regime.

“We will show that Orlando

Letelier was a documented enemy
of the CIA,” Goldberger said.
_ :Goldberger, in outlining the de-
_fense strategy, said Townley was a
“contract agent for the CIA” who
used his position in the Chilean
DINA as a cover.

Indeed, Goldberger suggested
‘that Townley was a “CIA mole,” a
double agent placed to ‘“burrow”
deeply into another country’s intel-
ligence network and provide infor-
mation on its activities.

Goldberger argued that the CIA .

ordered Townley to Kkill Letelier be-
cause the slaying would be blamed
on either the Chilean government
or the Cuban exiles he enlisted in
the alleged plot.

“The horrible  thought that the
CIA is responsible may be hard to
live with,” Goldberger told the jury.
“But that’s what we will show.”

‘assignment to kill Letelier, but that

Orlando Letelier
« «« he was assassinated

they knew him under an alias as a
DINA agent.

+ “We will prove that these are not
assassins who hide in the dark to
kill people,” Goldberger said. But,

Suarez, had participate
sassination, Propper said.

he added, their anti-Castro political
beliefs made them the ideal “scape- w
goats” in the schemes.

THE PROSECUTION’S opening
statement amounted to a scenario
that contained an almost equal
amount of intrigue.

Propper said he would provide
evidence linking the Cuban Nation-

alistic Movement (CNM) to the

Chilean secret police in at least one
other attempted act of international
terrorism.

He said the evidence would also

"show that the radical group — of

which the defendants were mem-

. bers — sought in return to be rec-

calmad Tans (hi]l~ ac tha (Cnlagr ~acc.

2-923 -0 |

they arrived after the meeting of
Chilean exiles had ended, Propper
said.

Although the prosecutors have |

~made it clear that Townley will be

their key witness, Propper said that
an unnamed Cuban exile informant
had provided supporting informa-
tion.

Paz told the informant that he,
Ross, Guillermo Novo and another
fugitive ,dt?tét::dant. Jose Dionisio
in the as-
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HE CITED the CIA’s role in over-
throwing the Marxist government
of Salvadore Allende — of which
Letelier was a cabinet member —
as evidence of the agency’s interest
in that Latin American nation.
Goldberger contended that the CIA

“buried” Townley to protect the

military government from new sub-
version.

Letelier, an exile who had been
instrumental in focusing world at-
tention on the military junta’s
human-rights violations, was such a
threat, Goldberger said.

The list of defense witnesses in-
cludes former CIA director Richard
Helms, who oversaw the agency’s

- activities in Chile in the early
1970s. Testimony will also be heard
from three active CIA officials who
have admitted Townley had once
been! “cleared” for use in Chile.

Goldberger and co-defense coun-
sel Lawrence Dubin told the jurors
that the three Cuban defendants
were ignorant of Townley's alleged

OBLlZEa DY Vhii€ a8 Uiv widb.oa gUVe
ernment-in-exile.

Propper said that in early 1975,
DINA sent Townley to Mexico to
disrupt a meeting of Chilean exiles.
Townley was told to contact CNM
members in the United States and
get their help on the mission, Prop-
per said.

IN MIAMI, Townley contactéd

CNM founder Felipe Rivero, he
said, who in turn referred him to
Guillermo Novo, the CNM leader in
New Jersey.

Propper said that Novo assigned
Virgilio Paz Romero of Union City,
N.J., to help Townley-on the mis-
sion. Paz has also been indicted but
remains a fugitive.

The purpose of that mission,
Propper continlied, was the kidnap-
ing of former Chilean Socialist
Party leader Carlos Altamirano.

Propper said Novo and others
provided Townley with explosives
to kill some of the exile leaders.

But the mission failed because
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'Letelier Had Role in Cuttlng
Aid to Chile, McGovern Says

'b C\ 1) By TOM FIEDLER The Cubans are fugitives. Chile has refused to grant ex-
Herald Washington Bureau tradition so that the agents could be tried.
WASHINGTON — Sen. George McGovern (D
S.D.) testified Tuesday that assassinated Chilean dlplo- THE INDICTMENT alleges that the director of the
mat Orlando Letelier persuaded him to lead a 1975 Sen-  Chilean secret police — DINA — ordered Letelier
ate move that ended direct foreign aid to the Chilean killed because he had become an effective critic of the
military junta. military junta that overthrew Marxist Salvadore Al-

McGovern said he met Letelier at a Washington  lende. The overthrow sent Letelier mtc;;yr
dinner party that year. He said that Letelier, living as ¢  The assassination was allegedly carried out under
an exile in Washington, convinced him that Gen. Au- ' the direction of Michael V. Townley, a DINA agent and
gusto Pinochet’s regime was guilty of massive human-  U.S. expatriate. Townley has pleaded guilty and will be
rights violations. the prosecution’s key witness.

As a result, McGovern said, he supported amend- Defense attorneys have said, however, that they
ments to the foreign and military assistance bill that Will prove that Townley was a double agent planted in-
ended military aid to Chile and sharply restricted U.S. side DINA by the CIA. They-also contend that the CIA
participation in international programs that benefitted Ordered Letelier killed if such a way that the Cuban
Chile. Nationalist Movement and the Chilean DINA would be

He also said that Letelier’s role in bringing this blamed. :
about was widely known in the Senate. ; ]

MCGOVERN'’S testimony was intended to support
McGOVERN’S TESTIMONY came on the second the prosecution’s theory that Letelier’s death was or-
day of the trial of three Cuban exiles charged in con- dered by Chilean authorities because his criticism was
nection with Letelier’s death. -having a measurable economic impact there.
A former Chilean forei inister, Letelier died ~~ That theory received additional support from a
pnﬁtd/

Sept. 21, 1976, when a bomb on his auto explod member of the Dutch parliament, Relus ter Beek. He
along Embassy Row. testified that Letelier had been primarily responsible
also was Kkilled. for a movement within Holland that stopped a Dutch

Alvin Ross Diaz and _nggr_m_ﬁ_qm_s.amml. both ~ company from investing $60 million in Chile.

o-worker Ronnie K. M

of New Jersey, are charged with carrying out the as- - He said Chile cited Letelier’s role in stopping the in-"

. sassination plot as members of the radlcal Cuban Na- vestment when it revoked his citizenship 11 days be-
tionalist Movement. : fore he was killed.

The third defendant is _X,EMO_ML of ©  “The deputy director of the Venezuelan Intelligence

Miami, brother of Guillermo. He is charged with help-  Service testified that defendant Guillermo Novo and
ing the other defendants elude capture and with lying  two other militants had traveled through Venezuela en
to a federal grand jury. route to Chile in December 1974. That testimony sup-

Two other Cuban militants and three high-ranking ported the prosecution’s contention that the defendants
Chilean secret police officials have also been indicted. had had links with the Chllean junta before the killings.

Mlan, EB-Q,P.,J.A }"\'\—*a‘x (219
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‘My Mission Was to Murder

1/{ '///((/7?

Letelier.’ Says Chilean Agent
5-43 e

By TOM FIEDLER

' Herald Washington Bureau

WASHINGTON — “My mis-
sion,” Michael Vernon Townley
said casually in answer to a prose-
cutor’s questions, ‘‘was the elimina-
tion ... the assassination .., the
killing of Orlando Letelier.”

“My orders were to make the
death appear to be an accident, or a
suicide, to make it as innocuous as
possible.”

That courtroom testimony Thurs-
day seemed particularly strange,
coming from a man so clean-cut and
soft-spoken that he appeared more
like a church deacon than an assas-
sin.

But assassin he is. For on Sept.
21, 1976, by his 6wn admission, he
planted the bomb that killed Leteli-
er, the former Chilean ambassador
to the United States during the re-
gime of Salvadore Allende.

LETELIER, WHO was living hese
in forced exile after Allende was
overthrown, and Mrs. Ronni Mof-
fitt, a young assistant, died when
the remote-controlled bomb strap-
ped to the floorboard of Letelier’s
Chevelle exploded as they drove to
work along Embassy Row.

... star wilness

A third passenger, Ronni's hus-
band Michael, survived the blast.
But, in a dazed state, he was found
by onlookers running from the
wreckage screaming, ‘‘The fascists
have done this to us.”

Townley, 36, in a deferential tone
and with unflappable calm, spent
almost four hours Thursday ex-

e b e

plaining to a U.S. District Court
jury how he carried out his assign-
ment to ‘“‘eliminate’ Letelier.

Townley already has pleaded
guilty. He is the government’s key
witness in the case against his al-
leged Cuban exile accomplices.

Most of his testimony had been
outlined previously by prosecutors,
but he did provide some fresh de-
tails Thursday in telling his story
publicly for the first time.

HE SAID he directed the plot as
an agent for DINA, the Chilean se-
cret police, and was assisted by
members of the militant Cuban Na-
tionalist Movement.

Two of the Cuban defendants,
Alvin Ross Diaz and _Guillermo

«Dovo, both of Ugion City, N.J., are
charged, along with two others
who remain fugitives, with helping
Townley carry out the murder.

The rd defendant, _Ignacio
_Novo Miami, allegedly lied to a

federal grand jury investigating the
assassination and assisted the other
Cuban militants in eluding capture.
He is Guillermo Novo's brother.
Townley’s three .superiors in

Turn to Page 18A Col. 1




TOwnley: Diplomat’s Death

Was Result of a Consplracy

EFHUM PABE A

DINA who conceived the mission
also are charged in the murder.
However, they have not been extra-
dited to the United States.

THE THREE Cuban defendants
focused an icy stare on Townley
throughout his testimony and, at
one point, hurled insults at him dur-
ing a break in the proceedings.

With the jury absent from the
courtroom after Judge Barrington
Parker Jr. called attorneys to his

private chambers, the three Cubans

hissed epithets at Townley, who
was sitting next to a U.S. marshal
only a few feet away.

In venemous Spanish, they called
him a “whore,” a “bastard” a “son
of a whore” and — despite their

pleas of not guilty in the assassina-

tion — a “traitor.”

A young Cuban woman in the
courtroom also called to Townley,
-“Someone should cut out your
tongue.”

The three defendants claim that
Townley actually is a CIA double-
agent who used DINA as a cover
for his activities. Defense attorneys
also contend that the CIA orches-
trated the murder and then framed
the Cuban exiles.

TOWNLEY ADMITTED Thurs-
day that he had volunteered for CIA
duty in 1970, but never was con-
tacted after being interviewed in
Miami by a CIA agent. He said he
telephoned the CIA’s Miami office
twice more in late 1973, but again
‘wasn’t used.”

When Assistant U.S. Attorney

Eugene Propper asked him if he
ever had worked for the CIA,
Townley replied in a strong voice:
“No sir, I have not.”
. He said he was drawn into intelli-
‘gence work as the result of his
hobby — electronics — and his
anti-Communist political beliefs
during Allende’s Marxist regime.

When Allende shut down the
Chilean radio stations in 1972,
Townley set up a mobile station
that moved around Santiago, the
capital city, broadcasting anti-gov-
ernment information.

After Allende was overthrown in
a bloody military.coup in 1973 — a
coup that eventually forced Letelier
intn exile here — Townley said he

g “superﬁcnal fnends" with
AT

- Associa‘led Press

Bomb Ripped Orlando Letelier’s Car in 1976

««+.he and associate died in Washington blast

- ment, and discussed his assignment

in “very general terms.” In the end,
Townley testified, he decxded
against enlisting any Miami-area
Cubans in the plot because *most of
them tumed out to be very talk-
ative.”

Rivero referred him-to Guillermo

* Novo.in New Jerse 'I.‘ownley said.

Townley saxd w that’ Novo
had gone to Chile ln 19 ith Or-

ando Bosch, a’ Cuban tefrorist, and
sio_Suarez, also of New
Jersey. The two had wanted Chile

to recognize the Cuban Nationalist
Movement as the Cuban govern-

ment in exile.

Townley said he persuaded Novo
that he was a legitimate DINA
member. Novo, Townley said, then
gave him exploswe and assigned
Virgil Paz Romero to'h

The plot failed because Townley
and Paz arrived in Mexico City one
day after the Chilean exile meeting
ended, Townley said. But the mis-

sion succeeded in cementlng a rela-{"

tionship between. DINA and the
Cuban Nationalist Movement, espe-
cially its'New Jersey leaders, Guil-
lermo Novo and Paz.

" TOWNLEY SAID" that in early
1976 Paz traveled to Chile and at-
tended the DINA training school.
While there, Paz stayed with Town-
ley and his family in suburban San-
tiago.

The orders to assassmate Leteh-

er, who had become an internation- -

al spokesman against the military
junta, came late in the summer of

1976, Townley said.
nftmlly, the murder was to be
carrled out only by Townley and
another DINA agent, he said. But
after some initial plans went afoul
‘nd DINA officials began to fear
o, an

3-93-63

-the

bomb went off, Townley said he
flew first to New Jersey the next
morning and, after meeting with
Novo, flew to Miami that night to
visit his parents in'Boca Raton. The
date was Sept. 19.

He directed Paz and Suarez to
carry out the murder by activating
remote-controlled bomb as
Letelier drove through ‘“an ex-
tremely unpopulated park” near his
home so nobody else would be in-
jured.

“They were told not to do it if
anyone else was in the car,” Town-
ley added. -

On Sept. 21, the mission was ac-
complished. “I heard on the news
that something had happened in
Washington,” he said.

But neither of his instructions
was followed. The bomb exploded
in a highly populated area, and
there were two other passengers in
the car. g
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the intelligence oificer assign<¢u by
the Allende government to close
Townley’s broadcasting station.

IN LATE 1974, Townley said that
Col. Pedro Espinoza recruited him
into DINA, where his American
background and knowledge of elec-
tronics could be useful to the intelli-
gence service.

Townley said his first mission
came a month later. He was sent to
Miami under an alias to buy elec-
tronic-surveillance equipment for
DINA. He purchased the equipment
at Audio Intelligence Devices Inc.,
near Fort Lauderdale, and returned
to Santmgo.

Then, in early 1975, Townley
said he was called by DINA director
Manuel Contreras and assigned to
“eliminate’” two Chilean exiles crit-
ical of the military junta.

This was Townley’s first connec-
tion with the Cuban Nationalistc”
Movement. Townley said his orders
were to dlsrupt a meeting of Chil-
ean exiles in Mexico City and
‘“eliminate” Carlos Altamirano and
Volodia Teitelbaum, both leading
anti-junta leftists.

DINA, Townley said, told him to
get help from Cuban exiles he had
met during the four years, 1967-71,
he lived in Miami.

HE SAID he traveled to %i
and contacted Feli,ge Rivero, foun-

der of the Cuban Nationalist Move-

s i wila AN

they might be linked toa killing,
alternative plan was developed,
Townley said. Cuban exiles would
be used to assassinate Letelier.

Townley said that when he flew
to New Jersey and outlined the plan
to Novo and others in the exile
group, ‘‘They complained that they
were on the small end of the fun-
nel,” a Spanish expression meaning
roughly that they were being asked
to accept the responsibility of a
large country.

But he said Novo reluctantly
agreed to participate on the condi-
tion that Townley be actively in-
volved and that DINA agree to sup-
port the Cuban exile movement.

TOWNLEY SAID the decision to
kill Letelier with a bomb was made
Sept. 18 during a breakfast at a Mc-
pﬁﬁxald‘s in Washington.

With him were Paz and Suarez,
who drove here from New Jersey
on orders from Novo, Townley said.
Together they built the bomb —
with parts purchased at local Radio
Shack stores and a Sears, Roebuck
store — and drove to Letelier’s sub-

urban home about midnight, he
said.
Townley said he personally

crawled beneath the car and at-

“tached the bomb to the chassis be-

neath the driver’s seat.
Because his orders called for him
to be out of Washington when the



Letelier’s Assassin Involved

In Other Deaths, Court Told

. fb ’q 3
] By TOM FIEDLER

Herald Washington Bureau

The jury was not present when the allegation was

made. L
Townley, a soft-spoken native of Waterloo, lowa,

WASHINGTON — American expatriate Michael V. ! !
Townle¥. who has admitted directing the bombing E’ who became a contract assassin for the dreaded Chil-

sassination of Chilean diplomat Orlando Letelier, may

have orchestrated similar political murders in Buenos’

Aires and Rome, according to allegations raised Friday.

‘Defense attorneys for three Cuban exiles, on trial
here in connection with Letelier’s 1976 murder, raised
Townley'’s possible involvement iri two other assassina-
tions. The allegation was made during legal arguments
over how far defense attorneys could delve into Town-
ley’s past while cross-examining his testimony.

ean intelligence service DINA, outlined in spine-chill-
ing detail Thursday how he allegedly directed Cuban-
American militants in the plot against Letelier. ;
Letelier and Mrs. Ronni K. Moffitt, an assistant,
died Sept. 21, 1976, when a remote-controlled bomb
strapped to the floorboard of Letelier’s car exploded as

urn to Page 22A Col. 1
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Ross:Diaz

Judge Bars Evidence

On Townley’s Other

Missions for DINA

D FROM PAGE IA

' they
drove along Embassy Row here.
Letelier was a Chilean ambassa-
dor to the United States under
Marxist Chilean President Salva-
dore Allende. He had lived in exile
here after Allende was overthrown
hy a military junta in 1973 and had
become a leading world critic of the
junta’s human rights policies.
Townley testified Thursday that
he directed the Letelier assassina-
tion, under orders from DINA, and
was assisted by the milj

Nationalist Movement.

In return for his testimony,
Townley has been allowed to plead
guilty to a lesser charge of conspir-
acy to murder a foreign official. He
will be eligible for parole in less'
than four years. &

Attorneys for
defendants —

attacked the plea-bar-
gaining arrangement. :

ATTORNEY PAUL Goldberger
told Judge Barrington Parker that
the arrangement enabled Townley
to escape prosecution for other as-
sassination activities in foreign
countries that he may be linked to.

The judge asked Goldberger what
purpose such information would
serve in the case. Goldberger re-
plied that it could show Townley's
method of operation as a DINA
agent. .

“Don’t we have a right to show
that Mr. Townley was in the busi-

4 L]
YN A O

nt Cuban

b‘-e?a—té

ness of Kkilling people even before

. he met the Cuban [defendants|?” he

asked. : A
Goldberger said passport records

_ and ‘“hearsay” evidence indicate

that' Townley may have been in-
volved in a 1974 political assassina-

tion in Buenos Aires and a 1975 as- S
_sassination in Rome.

Chief federal prosecutor Law-
rence Barcella conceded that pass-
port records show that Townley
was in both countries either on or
shortly before those assassinations.

IN BUENOS AIRES, another

Chilean exile, Gen. Carlos Prats,:

and his wife Sofia were killed when
a bomb in their car exploded.

Like Letelier, Prats had been a
high-ranking official in the Allende
government and had been a critic of
the military junta. That murder has
nﬁ;gpbeen solved.

. year later, in Rome, former

" three Cuban- ilean vice president Bernardo

i Leighton and his wife were machi-
| and Alvin negunned as they walked along a
a-bar- -street. Although Leighton survived,

he remains paralyzed. His wife,
Anita, died in the attack. v

Goldberger cited hearsay evi-
dence that Townley made five trips
to Rome prior to the murder.

Prosecutors Barcella and Eugene
Propper conceded there is some evi:
dence to link Townley to the
crimes. But they argued that it is ir-
relevant to the Letelier case.

“THE GOVERNMENT of the U.S.
has no jurisdiction outside [the
country|,” Barcella said. “It would
do no good for us to question him
about other activities. We can’t
order him to [testify].”

Nafarcn B e g

o B -'b’-f

velouat acorney Lawrence

Dubin countered that if the activi- |

ties couldn’t be brought to the at-
tention of jurors, they would get

' only “half the picture’ of Townley.

“What is the government afraid

‘of?”” he asked Judge Parker.

Parker, however, agreed with the
prosecution. In an oral ruling that
will bar the defense from asking
Townley about other DINA mis-
sions, Parker said the jury had
heard enough to form a judgment
about Townley's character and
credibility.

“There is enough to show that
Mr. Townley is not the person
you'd want to sit next to at a Sun-
day worship service,” the judge

aid.

IN A RELATED development, de-
fense attorney Goldberger told the
judge he would produce an un-

named defense witness to testify -

that Townley was known to him as
a CIA agent as recently as 1976.

The defense has alleged that
Townley was, in fact, a CIA double
agent within DINA. That theory
holds that he assassinated Letelier
on CIA orders, and then framed the
Cuban defendants and DINA.

Townley denied in his testimony
Thursday that he ever worked for
the CIA. The CIA also has denied
such an association.

Goldberger refused to name the
alleged CIA ‘witness. He said the
witness was “very much concerned
about security. He’s been with the
company [CIA] for years.”

He hinted, however, that the con-
tact between Townley and the CIA
agent was made in Miami in early
1976 while Townley was preparing
for a mission against Chilean exiles
in Mexico.

Judge Parker indicated he would
require some ‘“hard” evidence to
back up Goldberger's claim before
he would allow him to question
Townley about CIA connectiouns.

The trial is to resume Wednes-
day.
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A Killer From Mi Hdle America

By TOM FIEDLER
llonld Washington Buresu

WASHINGTON Michael Vernon Townle
looks every bit as middle American and whole-
some as anyone Waterloo, lowa, ever produced.
He is tall, Ianky and friendly, even to hostile
defense attorneys. His polite
“yes, sir” to every affirma-
tive question comes in a
soft-spoken deferential tone
that. would make any moth-
er’s heart swell with pride.

But the actions which
Townley admits to in his
gentle way .can raise chills
on & listener’s neck: This
product of Waterloo, Iowa,
and one-time resident. of
Miami is a contract Killer, as
cold and calculating as al-
most any figure in the pages

TOWNLEY
of a John LeCarre spy novel.

Townley, now 36 years old is, in short, a liv-
ing contradlcnon

FOR THE past two days, he has held spell-

{'b{."o-.\a-\‘
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bound a U.S. District Court jury and a packed
courtroom of reporters and spectators with his
description of his exploits as a sometime-assassin
for the Chilean secret police agency, DINA

He has admitted plotting to *“‘eliminatg™ for-
mer Chilean diplomat Orlando Letelier with a
“device” that he constructed. The ‘“device’” was
a remote-controlled bomb that exploded with
such force beneath 'the driver’s seat of Letelier’s
car that his legs never were recovered.

Townley recounted calmly how he bullt the
bomb — combining his lifelong hobbies of elec-
tronics and radio-transmitting — and left mili-
tant Cuban exiles to detonate it in downtown
Washington.

If there was any remorse in his heart, he
didn’t let it show. But he did tell the jurors min-
utes before that he initially had declined to par-
ticipate in the assassination.

THE REASON: “My wife wasn’t feeling well.
She was going to have an operatlon " Also, he
added, he might have missed his son’s birthday.

The son of a Ford Motor Co. executive,

- Townley came to Chile at the age of 14 after at-

tending 'schools in Iowa, New Jersey and Mlaml

. overthrown, that official —

He quickly adapted. becoming proficient in
Spanish.

At the age of 19 — when his parents left for
the United States — he stayed behind to marry a
politically active women a decade older than he
was. He returned briefly to the United States
and worked for AAMCO Transmissions in Dade
County. But he and his wife missed Chile.

In 1971, after four unhappy years in Miami,
they returned and quickly got involved in politi-
cal activities against then-President Salvadore
Allende, a Marxist.

By day, Townley ran an auto-repair shop.
But, at night, he operated a clandestine, anti-Al-
lende radio station which he built himself. .

FATEFULLY, the government official assign-
ed to stop the broadcasts came to admire Town-
ley’s ability to elude capture. After Allende was :
DINA Col. Pedro Es-
pinosa — offered Townley a job as an electron-
ics expert.

“I took the job because things weren’t going
too well in my business at that time, anyway,” i
Townley testified. |

That, as they say, is the begmmng of thei
story. i

Se..v\us-&f\—\ 20\ ] 9
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: {b 0\ By TOM FIEDLER

Did Townley
Read About
The Iackaf)

Herald Washington Bureau

WASHINGTON — Admitted po-
litical assassin Ve 1
described Monday how easy it is for
an intelligence agent — or anyone |
with $12 (Z/{oe establish an alias. |

Townle§ used the name Kenneth
Enyart to travel on a U.S. passport
between Chile, where he lived and |
worked for the Chilean police agen- |
cy DINA, and several foreign coun-
tries in which he performed covert
missions.

Enyart, however, is a real person
although Townley doesn’t know
where he is — or even if he is alive. |
All Townley knows about him is |
that he is white, has the same color |
eyes and was born about the same
time. There is no Kenneth Enyart in |
the Miami telephone directory. ]

TOWNLEY DIDN'T SAY if he
had read Frederick Forsyth’s best-
selling novel Day of the Jackal. If
he had, he would have known that
it’s important to make certain that
your alias is dead when you pull
this caper. ]

In Forsyth’s book, the Jackal, a
professional international assassin,
goes to an English country grave-
yvard and searches for a headstone !
of a little boy. By finding one, he in-
sures that, when he applies for a
passport with a phony name, the
alias will not already have a pass-
port, thus foiling the scheme.

Having found the name of a dead
boy born about the same time as he,
the Jackal obtains a birth certificate
for the boy, then applies for a pass-
port using that birth certificate as
proof of name and British citizen-
ship.

TOWNLEY PICKED UP the
name Kenneth Enyart in Miami
while planning an assassination in
Mexico. He said he subsequently
used the alias when coming to the
United States to carry out the mur-
der of former Chilean diplomat Or-
lando Letelier.

Townley said that he went to the
Dade County Courthouse and read
through birth records until he came |
upon the name of someone whose !
birthdate was similar to his own. |
The name he found was Kenneth P.
Enyart.

He asked for a photocopy of En-
yart’s birth certificate, took it to the
passport office, paid $12 and was in |
business. Apparently Enyart does
not already have a passport — and !
Townley pulled it off without v1s1t-
ing a graveyard.

=

Townley:

No Qualms
Over Killing

) FHOM PAGE 1A

three militant Cuban exiles wh

a}legedly played roles in th assg?

sination. They are, Guxllszmo and

ﬁ acio Novo Sampol,” brothers,
d Alvin Ross Diaz, _/

'ASKED MONDAY by defense at-
torney Paul Goldberger if he had
“any regrets” about Killing Letelier,
Townley replxed simply, “Specm-
cally, no sir.’

But he added
in a reference
to Moffitt: “The
person accom-
panying  him,
very much so.”

that heé ordered
his alleged
Cuban conspir-
ators to deto-

' nate a remote-
. Letelier controlled
bomb strapped to the car only if
Letelier was alone.

' He also said he directed that the
bomb be detonated in an unpopulat-
ed park area so that no innocent
passers-by would be injured. Nei-
ther directive was followed. The
explosmn occurred on Embassy
Row, within sight of the Chilean
Embassy.

' Sources close to the case have
said  that Townley’s cooperation
with the prosecution'stems in part
f!tom.his remorse over killing Mof-
9 d o I

. MEANWHILE, chief defense at-

.tonrey Goldberger, in an effort to

discredit Townley’s testimony be-
fore the jury, bore in on the plea-
bargained arrangement he had
worked out with prosecutors in ex-
change for his cooperation.

' That agreement enables Townley
to plead guilty to a single count of
consplracy to kill a foreign official
and receive a sentence of between
40 months and 10 years.

- Goldberger especially was caus-

tic about a provision that allows

Townley to keep silent about other

DINA missions that may have in-
cluded assassination of Chilean ex-
iles in Rome and Buenos Aires.

+ Townley, after invoking the Fifth
Amendment right against self-in-

~crimination to avoid testifying

about other DINA assignments, said
that he remains under an oath of se-
crecy to Chile.

« The Chilean government official-
Iy has released him from his secre-
cy vows to testify in connection
with the Letelier trial only.

¢ “I do wish to return to Chile, to
what I consider my homeland,”
Townley said in declining to an-

Townley tes- |
tified last week |

swer any question that might sub- j

|ect him to prosecution’ there
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WASHINGTON
— In polite, expr:
sionless tones, /ﬁi
chael V. Townley, the
American expatriate
turned Chilean secret
agent, testified Mon-
« day -that he had no

Michael Townley  moral gualms about
- . , directing the Kkilling
. ,#a soldier

lando Letelier.
Under a sometimes sharp cross-examination of his
testimony in U.S. District Court, Townley, 36, likened

Townley said.
: ‘“‘He was a soldier of his cause and I was a soldier

i of mine. I received an order and I carried it out as
best as I could,” he said.
Townley s testimony came as the trial of three

Miaml %c\"a.\:&

He Was an Enemy

of Jeftist diplomat Or-_

his mission to assassinate Letelier to a wartime order.-
“I would consider him (Letelier) an enemy,”.

Townley: No Regrets
In Death of Letelier

By TOM FIEDLER

Herald Washington Bureau

Cuban-Americans also charged in connection with
Letelier’s death, entered its third week.

Letelier was the Chilean ambassador to the Unit-
ed States under the late Marxist President Salvador
Allende. He died Sept. 21, 1976, when a bomb strap-
ped beneath his car exploded in a Washington ne:gh-
borhood.

Letelier had lived in exile in Washington after a
military junta overthrew the Allende regime.

Ronnie K. Moffitt, 25, Letelier’s assistant, also,

died in that explosion.
Townley already has pleaded guilty in return for
a lesser sentence.

In two days of startling testimony last week,
Townley, a soft-voiced, clean-cut Waterloo, Iowa, na-
tive, said he carried out the killing at the direction of

the Chilean secret police agency, DINA, which want-
ed Letelier’s criticism of the junta silenced.
He is the government s key witness against the

- Turn to Page 8A Col. 1
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Ignacio Novo A
M

dmits Truth

alel

Of Charges in Letelier Case

g By TOM FIEDLER

Herald Washingten Bureav
WASHINGTON — In a jdped
radio interview with a Dutch/news-
Sampol” admit-

assassination trial,
a federal judge was told Monday.

The admission, made Friday and
broadcast over National Public
Radio this weekend, became part of
the federal court record Monday as
the trial of Novo and two other
Cuban exiles entered its fourth
week.

Novo, a Miami used car dealer, is
charged with lying to a federal
grand jury investigating the Leteli-
er assassination and with helping
other alleged conspirators to escape
arrest. He is not charged with par-
ticipation in the murder.

NOVO HAD TOLD the grand
jury he did not know anyone con-
nected with the Chilean intelligence
agency, DINA, nor anyone who had
been in Chile.

His negative replies had contra-
dicted the ‘tjpffmony of the govern-
ment's k witness, Michael V.
g , an American expatriate
turned DINA agent. .

Townley told the jury that he
went to Miami and contacted Novo
after planting the bomb that killed
Letelier as the former ambassador
drove to work in Washington,
where he lived in exile.

Townley said he met Novo at the
Sheehan Bulck agency Sept. 21,
1976, the day of Letelier's death,
and told him what he had done.
Townley also said that Novo drove
him to the alrport, where he caught
a flight to Chile.

UNTIL NOW, federal prosecutors
had been unable to verify Town-
ley’s version of the meetings inde-
pendently.

But in a radio interview with
Dutch newsman Jan Joost Teunis-
sen, Novo volunteered that he had
met Townley in 1975 — a year be-
fore the murder — during one of
Townley’s visits to Miami.

More important, he admitted

In a rambling interview with Dutch newsman Jan Joost
Teunissen, Ignacio Novo inadvertently verified the testi-
mony of government witness Michael Townley — while
trying to refute Townley’s accounts — and Novo implicat-
e«lhimself in helping the alleged conspirators to escape.

Chile in the two years before his
testimony.

A copy of the interview was
made available to prosecutors over
the weekend. The government also
held reporter Teunissen available to
testify Monday but decided against
calling him as a government wit-
ness. They informed Judge Barring-
ton Parker Jr. and defense attor-
neys Monday of the interview.

IN ONE PORTION of the ram-
bling interview — largely devoted
to calling Townley a liar and a CIA
plant — Novo inadvertently veri-
fied Townley’s account of his move-
ments when he went to Miami after
planting the bomb, leaving two Cu-
bans behind to detonate it. ¥

Townley testified that he called
Novo on the morning of Sept. 21,

1976, and was told by him that .

‘‘something has happened in Wash-
ington,” a reference to the bom-
bing. Townley also said he met
Novo for a late lunch during which
the assassination plot was dis-
cussed.

Novo told the Interviewer he was
called by Townley between 11 and
11:30 a.m.

“He said he was passing through
the city and that he was out of
money and needed transportation.
So I invited him to lunch that day.
We went out to lunch at about 2:30
in the afternoon,” Novo said to the
interviewer.

ALTHOUGH prosecutors tenta-
tively have decided against playing
the tape for jurors, defense attor-
neys were furious about Novo's
statements.

One member of the defense team
said angrily that the prosecution
case against Novo was extremely
weak until he implicated himself.

 Another muttered to a newsman

The seven-woman, five-man jury |

he at he had “a jackass for a client.”
was introduced to Townley by an-

other militant Cuban, Virgilio P.
— a fugitive in the Letelier murder
— as an “emissary of the Chilean
government.” ‘

That admission contradicted his
sworn denial to the grand jury that
he knew anybody who had been in

5.,-

has been sequestered since the
trial’s opening day and therefore
has neither read nor heard media
reports concerning the case.

INDEED, most of the activity
Monday went on outside the jury’s

e
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hearing. The prosecution and de-
fense continued arguments about
allowing the testimony of two jajl-
house who allegedly

inform
heard the .:n%)mzther defendants,,
_Alvin Ross and Guillermo” Novo

make incriminating admissions
while they were awaiting trial.
Ross and Guillermo are charged
with conspiracy to murder Letelier.

Onfzinformant..s.hmn_lm
skurH0, told the judge last week out

of the jury’s presence that Ross had
admitted taking part i everal
Cuban Nationalist Mov bom-
ings. ’

The second informant, GreekTm-
migrant gun-dealer Antonio”Poly-.
tarides, is expected to testify today
that Guillermo Novo told him that

he wanted to buy weapons from
him.
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A chronology of events in the Or-
lando Letelier assassination case:

Sept. 21, 1976 — A car bomb
kills Letelier and an associate,
Ronni Moffitt, at Sheridan Circle as
they drive to work through Wash-
ington’s Embassy Row.

Oct. 17, 1976 — A Venezuelan
newspaper reports that two un-
named Cuban exile brothers living
in the United States have been im-
Plicated in the Letelier ‘assassina-
“tion. The information came from
other Cuban exiles being questioned
about the Oct. 6 terrorist bombing
,of a Cuban airliner off Barbados,
the newspaper El Nacional said.

Jan. 15, 1977 — Three Cuban
exile veterans of the Bay of Pigs,
Miami residents, are summoned to
testify before a federal grand jury
in Washington investigating the
Letelier assassination. At least a_

later to teStify.

CONTRER AS

TOWNLEY

at the time of the slaying. -~

May 2, 1978 — Toayméy's Chil-
ean wife,_ Mariana Caflejas, reports
in Chile that he has told U.S: inves-
tlgators who his accomplices were
in the assagsination.

May 1978 —

conspiring to murder Letelier

Ignacio Novo
dozen more Cuban exiles are cal]ed _S_aﬂL__ls arrested on cﬁar:;ﬂ%v

- April /20, 1977 — José Dionisio

Suérez, an anti-Castro exile living
in Elizabeth, N.J., is jailed for refus-
ing to testify before the Letelier
grand jury. He was ‘released after a
year'in jail.

March 5, 1978 — The Sanliago

mystery figure sought i t

sipation 'as Michael Vernoh:

ley, an Amerncan atriate-living
CThile. ]

_ March 21, 1978/ — Chilean Gén.

Manuel Contrerds, former chief of

secret police, resigns from the

army.

> March 29, 1978 — A Chilean mil-
itary judge - quesuons Townley “be- !
Bind closed doors in Santiago.

-~ April 8, 1978 — Townley is ex-
pelled by Chilean authorities, who'!
deliver him into the custody of two
FBI agents assigned to bring him
back to the United States for ques-
tioning in the Letelier case, -

April 10, 1978 — A U.S. Dis) nct‘
Court Judge in Washington gfders |
Townley to be held withou nd as
a material witness.

ordered held on $200,000 bong<José
‘Dionisio Su&rez and Virgilio Paz
Cuban exile residents of ri\‘ew Jer-
sey, are also charged with conspira-
cyA (They remain at large.) |

ination.
878 — Townley, ap-

on charges not re-..
ing betrayal b

lated to the

~ April 18,

May 17, 1978 — Ross Diaz is

charged with conspiracy to murder"

Letelier. R
May 18, 1978 — The Justice De-

partment formally charges Guiller-

mo Novo Sampol with conspiracy
in the Letelier assassination.
June 23, 1978 — U.S. Ambassa-

“dor George Landau is recalled from

Chile “*for consultations” as a sign
of Washington’s displeasure over a
lack of Chilean cooperation in the
Letelier murder investigation. Lan-

Chronology of the Letelier Assassina

dau returned to his post after nine

days.
Aug. 1, 1978 — The Letelier
grand jury in Washington indicts

the five Cuban exiles previously
charged ‘and three former officials
of the Chilean secret police, DINA.
The indictment says Gen. Contrer-
as, former head of the DINA, “initi-
ated the action . .. and ordered the
assassination” of Letelier. Coptrer-
as and the two other of{ic%dicb
Col. Pedro Espinoza and

ed, Lt.

R
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prose-
y are “‘pre-

pared to prove that ...

was a
bek

Yy Ross
im held

thout bond. Government

tors announce that the

govern-
y with con-
nation, and a

etails of
federal magistrate orders h

Townley

illermo Novo Sampol,
government agent, acting on
alf of the government of Chile"

g FBI agents d

e assassination plot.

April 26, 1978 — The
ment charges Townle,
spiracy in the assassi

i
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Dfaz and Gu
begins tellin

parently fear
th
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_Capt. Armando Ferng Larios.
are reporled to be under house ar-
rest in Chile.

Aug. 11, 1978 — In a plea-bar-
gaining _arrangement, Townley
pleads guilty to conspiracy to assas-
sinate Letelier. In return for a re-
duced sentence of 10 years in pris-
on, Townley agrees to testify
against the others. He will be eligi-
ble for parole after serving one-
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third of the sentence.

Sept. 20, 1878 — The United
States formally requests that Chile
extradite the three former DINA of-
ficers, Contreras, Espinoza and Fer-
nandez Larios. The Chilean su-
preme court has not ruled on the re-
quest.

Jan. 9, 1979 — The Washington
trial of Ross Diaz and the Novo
Sampols begins.



Case Against 3 Cubans |

In Letelier Case Weakens

rb,“\
By TOM FIEDLER

i Herald Washington Bureau

WASHINGTON — The  case
against three Cubans on trial here
in connection with Chjfan diplo-
mat Orlando Letelier’s“assassination
developed cracks Monday that later
may be exploited by defense attor-
neys.

As the trial entered its third
week, one prosecution witness ad-

mitted that in previous testimony

~he had incorrectly identified one of
-the defendants, Alvin Ross Diaz, a
a man who had rented an apart-
ment from him in Union City, N.J.
The FBI, in searching that apart-
.ment last year, found several bomb
«parts and documents that the pgose-
“cution said connected Alvin Ross to
the Letelier assassination. .
The apartment-was leased to Car-
los P. Garcia, according to the lease
.agreement. Prosecutors Eugene

“Ross. - ,

=320

They buttressed that assertion by
calling-landlord Luis Vega to testify
at a hearing in which defense attor-
neys tried to have the seized items
ruled inadmissible in the trial.

After three attempts, Vega tenu-
ously identified Ross — who was

seated at the defense table — as the ~

man who rented the apartment. But
when Vega appeared to testify at

_the trial, defénse attorneys pro-

uced a man they called ‘“the real”
Carlos P. Garcia. Vega, without

hesitation, agreed that man was the

one he knew as Garcia.

Ross is charged, along with Guil.,
‘lermo Novo and two fugitives, with
conspiring to assassinate Letelier
under the direction of confessed
Chilean segpet’ agent Michael V,
Townley. ,

A third defendant, Ignacio Novo,f

Propper and Lawrence Barcella al- is charged with lying to a grand
leged in a preliminary hearing Jan. jury and helping the other conspira-
11 that Garcia was an alias used by tors elude capture. -

M

3-93-,9

JESYRE



f Alvin R&és Diaz

‘.18 ,(\ib ... told informer?

/\/\14 :.3]3’,17"" |
‘Confession

Is Alleged in
Letelier Case

' By TOM FIEDLER
| Herald Washington Bureau

WASHINGTON — The leader of | -
the _ alist _Mov
mitted to a cellmate his group’s

involvement in the 1976 assassina-
tion of former Chilgdn ambassador

rlando ‘Letelier, he cellmate —
now ‘a. government informant —

ified Friday. -
tesAgrse'cornd gﬂ n informant told
U.s. Distric:??ge Barrington Par- |

ker Jr. that dnother Cuban,_Alvin |
Ross Diaz of Union City, N.J., told
hi?: that the Cuban Nationalist
Movement also had plans to blow :
up Soviet ships in U.S. ports using |
booby-trapped = remote-controlled
motorboats. Ross also is on '!:rl§l
here in connection with Letelier’s
murder.

JUDGE PARKER on_ieregrut%ut
the testimony of both info ts
against Guillermo Novo Sampol, the
movement leader, and Ross be
.given out of the jury’s presence so
he could determine if the conversa-
tions would be legally admissible in
the case.

Three Cubans, Ross, Novo and'i"

his brother Ignacio Novo Sampol, ;
are charged in nnection with
Letelier’s 1976 death in a car bom-
bing" on Embassy Row in down-
n Washington.
to‘Ev)efense attgorneys Paul Goldber- |
ger and Lawrence Dubin argued
that the two informants might have
illegally coerced — or even made
‘up — the incriminating admissions
from the defendants in order to get

3 -7

light treatment for their own
crimes.
If Parker agrees that the alleged
confessions weren’t volunteered by
| the two Cubans, the jury will not be
iallowed to hear the informants,
Parker is expected to rule Monday.

. The testimony of Novo's cell-
‘mate, convicted weaapo{sp dealer |

t S, 33, could be
~especially helpful to Prosecutors be-
cause it ties Novo directly to the
Letelier killing.

POLYTARIDES TOLD the judge
“that he had been placed in the Met-
ropolitan Corrections Center in
New York City as a federal inform-
ant. His assignment, he said, was to
try to arrange weapons sales to
other prisoners, then pass the infor-

mation along to the U.S: Secret
Service.

Polytarides said he came into
contact with Guillermo Novo —
who was held in the same jail from
May 1978 until the tria] — through

a Cuban drug dealer named Luis So- '
tomayer: |

Sotomayer had asked to buy 10 |
sub-machineguns, five for his gang |
and five for the Cuban Nationalist |
Movement, Polytarides said. He
added that when he asked Sotomay-
er what the Cuban Nationalist
Movement was, Sotomayer replied -
that it was the group that was “re- "
sponsible for the Letelier bombing,” :

A few week later, Polytarides i
said he met Novo in their cellblock. !
“I said, ‘I know You,” ” Polytarides
told the judge. “ ‘Sotomayer told me

your group arranged for the Letelj-
er bombing.’ ‘

“He [Novo| said, ‘Yes, our group

Is responsible,* » Polytarides said.

o
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Letelier Defendants Told All

4
,b By TOM FIEDLER volved in the murder of Orlando
Herald Washington Bureau Letelier, together with the generals
WASHINGTON — After 16 days in Chile,” Kaminsky said Tuesday.
of testimony, 26 witnesses and He added that Ross named DINA
nearly 150 exhibits, federal prose- chief Gen. Manuel Contreras Se-
cutors Tuesday concluded their case pllveda and Townley as the men
against three Cuban exiles in the behind the plot. X
1976 car bombing death of former / Ross’s alleged admission concurs
Chilean diplomat_Orl with testimony given early in the
The government’s case ended trial by Townley, an American ex-
with strong testimony from two in- patriate who has become the prose-
formants who allegedly heard jail- cution’s key witness.
house admissions implicating two
of the defendants — Alvin Ross
~Diaz and _Gui Sam
= in Letelier’s death.

The most dramatic testimony
came from informant Sherman Ka-

ARLIER, a second informant
talked about a cellblock conversa-
‘tion. Convicted weapons dealer An-
tonio Polytarides told jurors that
defendant Guillermo Novo — the

minsky, 50. An admitted extorti leader of the Cuban Nationalist
ist whose record belies his svuncu Movement — told him that he'd
lar appearance, Kaminsky shared a Deen “betrayed by some persons in

i my case, but we’ll pay them back.”
mtilggﬁis;g.ith Roes; Shrodiion Assistant U.S. Attorney Eugene

In a series of conversations, Propper said the conversation refer-

which Kaminsky passed on to the red to Townley’s agreement to co-
FBI, Ross admitted his role in plot- ©OPerate with the FBL
ting and carrying out Letelier's The informants and Ross and

3 : Kamin- Novo were held in the Metropolitan
g’;;tgaﬁl_ i "1 Corrections Center in New York

last year at the time of the conver-
THE ADMISSIONS appeared to sations.

bolster the government’s claim that Ross and Novo are charged with

Letelier’s assassination was ordered conspiring to kill Letelier, the for-

by the Chilean intelligence agency, mer Chilean ambassador to the

DINA, and carried out by the Cuban United States who was living here

Nationalist Movement under the di- .in exile. :

rection of DINA agent Michael The third Aefendant, Ignaciq

Townley. Novo Sampol, Guillermo’s brother,
“Mr. Ross told me that he was in- is charged with attempting to cover

up the others’ participation in the
killing and with lying to a grand
jury. Ignacio Novo is from Miami.

LETELIER DIED Sept. 21, 1976,
when a bomb strapped beneath his
car exploded as he drove to work
along Embassy Row. A young co-
worker, Ronni Moffitt, 25, also
died.

DINA agent Townley admitted
making and placing the bomb with
help from the Cuban Nationalist
Movement. He testified that Leteli-
er was targeted for the assassina-
tion because he had become an ef-
fective critic of the Chilean military
junta that overthrew the Salvador
Allende Marxist government. Lete-~
lier was a member of Allende’s gov=
ernment.

Kaminsky's testimony quoting
Ross supported that account.

The confessed extortionist said
Ross befriended him after learning
that Kaminsky had been a member
of the Haganah, the Zionist forerun-
ner of the Israeli army. .

Kaminsky said Ross told him that
the Cuban movement had plans to
set up a military arm modeled after
the Haganah.

IN SUBSEQUENT conversations,
which Kaminsky said Ross always
initiated, Ross talked about his ad-

3115
ail,
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ellmates Say as Prosecution Closes

territory” and training’ facilities for :

movement members in their fight.

against Fidel Castro,
said.

Kaminsky said he first heard
Townley’s name mentioned when
Ross spoke of the individual he re-
ferred to as a rat, an informer..

“I subsequently found out he was
referring to Townley,” Kaminsky
said. 1

ROSS LATER detailed his con-
tacts with Townley and admitted

Kaminsky

that he had provided parts of the .

bomb used to kill the former am: |

bassador, Kaminsky said.

Defense attorney Lawrence
Dubin, in cross-examination, at-
tempted to bring out Kaminsky’s

long criminal record as an extor- .

|
|

tionist. But he was often cut short |
by prosecution objections sustained .

by Judge Barrington Parker Jr.
Dubin succeeded in showing,

however, that Kaminsky’s coopera-

tion with the government resulted

in part from a deal he’d made. That:

deal called for prosecutors to rec- |

ommend that Kaminsky be paroled-

in two extortion cases to which he
already has p_leaded guilty.

(

miration for the Chilean junta be- |
cause it had toppled a Marxist gov- '

ernment. Ross also said the Chilean

junta had agreed to provide ‘“‘safe '

Q
2

i
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Accuser Townley Is a Liar,
Defense Tells Letelier Jury

543

By TOM FIEDLER

Herald Washington Bureau

WASHINGTON — Condensing

five weeks of often sensational tes- .
timony, defense and prosecution at--
torneys marshaled their final argu-*

ments Monday for the trial of three
defendants in the assassination case

of former Chilean diplomat Orlando

Letelier.

The defense, representing three
Cuban exiles charged in connection
with Letelier’s 1976 death in a
downtown Washington car-bom-
bing, attached the credibility of the
government’s key witness, Ameri-

can expatriate Michael V. Townley,¢”

calling him a *“perversion” and a
“liar.”

Prosecutors attempted to weave
scattered bits of trial evidence into
a single fabric designed to corrobo-
rate Townley’s testimony detailing
an international conspiracy to mur-
der a political enemy, Letelier.

“What we have here,” said pros-
ecutor Lawrence Barcella, referring
to those persons indicted for the
murder, “is eight men who com-
bined and conspired ... to bring
terrorism to the streets of Washing-
ton, D.C.”

ONLY THREE of the eight were
in the courtroom — Cyban exiles
Guillermo Novo Sampol; his tyother
Ignacio, and Alvin Ross Diaz.

Virgilio Paz and José Dionisio Su
rez, remain fugitives. And three
Chilean officials who allegedly
mastermined the murder plot as
agents of DINA, the Chilean secret
police have not been returned to the
United States for trial.

Michael V. T.ow.l'l.leyv

««+ his testimony is key

The case against the three defen-
dants is expected to go to the jury
today after the prosecution has an
opportunity to answer defense at-
tacks on the evidence and on Town-
ley.

Townley, a 36-year-old onetime
Miami auto mechanic turned DINA
assassin, has pleaded guilty to di-

‘recting the murder plot.

Two other anti-Castro actvxstf/

IN FIVE DAYS as a witness,
Townley testified that he came to
the United States on orders from
DINA, enlisted the Cuban exiles in
the murder plan, assembled the
bomb and attached it to Letelier’s

car, and then left Paz and Suarez to

e - -

detonate it. e
Prosecutors also attemptéd to
show that the Cuban ionalist

‘Movement — and Guillermo Novo,

one of its leaders — had maintained
close ties to Chile’s military govern-
ment because of its strongly anti-
Communist views.

These ties enabled DINA to get
Cuban exile help in Killing Letelier,
a former member of Chilean Presi-
dent Salvador Allende’s Marxist
government and an outspoken critic
of the military junta that deposed’
Allende, Batcella argued.

DEFENSE ATTORNEYS Paul
Goldberger and Lawrence Dubin, in
four hours of sometimes emotional
appeals to the jury, attacked that
theory as implausible because, they
said, it was based on Townley's tes-
timony.

“When a foundation is made of
mush and garbage,” Goldberger
said, “you can’t build anything on
top of it.

‘““The government’s case is built
on Michael V. Townley,” he said.

Both defense attorneys character-
ized Townley as capable either of
cold-blooded killing or of ‘“bald-
faced” lying under orders. S

They also suggested — although
not as strongly as in their opening
statements five weeks ago — that
the CIA was Townley’s real boss
and that the Cuban defendants were
hapless victims of a frame-up.

- “A man who would kill without
remorse, without regret; a man
who would kill human beings as if
they were bugs,” asked Goldberger,
i;an;i is this a man worthy of be-
ief?”

B -7



Hot Weather Thwarted More Killings.

Informant Testszs at Letelier Trial

’D'qq) By TOM FIEDLER ik

Herald Washington Bureau

WASHINGT — An FBI informant testi-
fied Wednesday that one of three Cuban exiles
on trial in confection with Chilean diplomat Or-
1ando Letelier’s death told him t ssassins also

plans three other :
murders.

But, jhformant Ricardo
Canette ' said, those plans
were disrupted or postponed
because ‘“the climate in the
South was too inhospitable,
too hot.”

He said he didn’t know
the names of the alleged
“targets,” but was told one
of the three was a news re-
porter.

Canette,
born, j

also Cuban-

ROSS DIAZ

NOVO_>ampol.
Cuban Natlonahst Movement.

CANETTE TESTIFIED that he learned of the

alleged plan to kill three others during a conver=

sation with defendant Ross in July 1977.
Canette, an admitted forger, appax;egtly_]lag

L ecald

.
™\ wa nn .

e/against /Alvin . Ross
of and h;sféother, Guil-
e

won Ross’ confidence because he had provided
both Ross "and Ignacio Novo with false identity
cards. Those papers later would be used by the
defendants in an attempt to elude capture, ac-
cording to the indictment.

Canette said Ross boasted to him that he had
.made the bomb that killed the former Chilean
ambassador to the United States as Letelier
drove to work in Washington on Sept. 21, 1976.
Letelier lived here in exile.

But Canette said Ross denied planting the

gade members” and a “fair-haired man.”
The two “brigade members” apparentlyZre

fugitive co-conspirators José Dionisio Suarez and
VirF!Iio Paz. The “fair-haired” person is appar-
ently ael V. Townled, the government’s key

witness, who has admitted directing the assassi-
nation on orders from the Chilean secret police
agency DINA.

bomb, saying that had been done by two /b:l/

CANETTE, IN cross-examination by defense
attorney Lawrence Dubbin, said Ross told him of
the three other targets while boasting about the
militant Cuban group’s activities.

Ross said the plans had to be altered because
of the Letelier assassination and because ‘the
climate in the South was too hot,” Canette said.

In a side comment, Canette also said that
after he reported this'conversation to Lhe FBI,

agents asked that he submit to a lie-detector test.
He said he agreed.

Judge Barrington Parker Jr. quickly instruct-
ed the jury to disregard that comment, which ap-
parently was.inadmissible, in his view.

During most of the day, Canette was subject-

‘ed to a sharp cross-examination by defense at-

torney Dubbin, who questioned Canette about
his lengthy record as a forger and con man, in an
attempt to discredit his testimony.

Dubbin also tried, with only small success, to
catch Canette,in minor discrepanices by compar=
ing his testimony in the case with statements

glven by him previously to the FBI or the grand

jury.

HIS. TESTIMONY is crucial to the govern-
ment’s case because it independently bolsters
many of the details brought out last week by
Townley, the confessed DINA agent.

Canette told the jury Tuesday that fugitive
Paz — in Ross’ presence — admitted to him that
“We did it {killed Letelier]. We know it. They
know it. But let them prove |L " Ross nodded in
assent, Canette said.

Canette also said“Ross once complained tn
him that if Chile.didn’t help him elude federal
agents, he couldg“lay this into the hands of Man-

uel Contreras:

Contreras was the head of DINA and the man
who allegedly ordered Letelier's death.
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Ciilean affair:” -
avicious circle 21°

The bizarre, ugly scenario has two parts:

The United States helped create the repressive Chilean
:government of Augusto Pinochet, but exactly how that -
“happened probably will never be known.

- And, evidence is mounting that the Pinochet regime
arranged for a political assassination in the United States.
Yet it appears three close iates of Pinochet indicted for
‘that crime will not be tried.

The plot behind the assgassination of former Chilean
diplomat Orlando Letelier and his aide, Ronni Moffitt, has
thickened to the point that it now includes, directly, military
strongman Pinochet. .

According to George W. Landau, U.S. ambassador to
Chile, Pinochet personally intervened to obtain false
passports for two of the Chilean secret police agents indicted
in the September 1976 car-bomb murder of Letelier in
Washington, D.C. Landau reportedly was told of Pinochet’s
intervention by an aide to Alfredo Stroessner, right-wing
president of Paraguay, through whom Pinochet sought the .
passports; which were obtained but not used.

But the two Chilean agents, who event::l’ll;?raveled to

the United States on official Chilean passports urder aliases,

are accused of recruiting Cuban exiles to carry‘out the

bombing. One of those agents, Michael Townley, an

American working for Chilean intelligence, has admitted his

role in the assassination and has$ testified in the trial against

the Cubans which is now going on in Washington.
‘ Also indicted by a U.S. grand jury are Chilean Gen.

Manuel Contreras Sepulveda, former head of the Chilean

intelligence agency, and two other Chilean officials. The U.S.

Justice Department wants the three men extradited to face ;
trial. But the Chilean foreign minister said there was little L N
chance of that. So, there is also little chance that those who NG b g
ordered the murder of Letelier ever will be brought to <

justice. e £

. The odd twist in all of thls is that the Pinochet regime

exists largely because of U.S. efforts to undercut Chile’s

economy and bring about the overthrow of Salvador

Allende, the former Marxist president of Chile for whom

Letelier worked.

If this country created a monster in Pinochet, it may

never know just how. Strangely, the same U.S. Justice

Department seeking to extradite the suspected masterminds

of the Letelier murder also has dropped perjury charges

against a former executive of the International Telephom‘aiiI

5
P
> \a nQ,

and Telegraph Co. in order to avoid disclosures of Americ
intelligence activities in Latin America — particularly th
activities involving Chile and Allende.
The ITT executive accused of perjury, Robert Berrellez_,
according to a Justice Department source, had in his
possession “highly sensitive” information about CIA
operatlons The U.S. government prosecutor, John Kotelly,
*in moving to dismiss the charges, said that because “of
national security we cannot proceed” in the case.
. National security is rapidly becoming a matter of ,/\
i definition. Who writes the definition? Certainly not the (\
. American people. How can they feel secure when a foreign /b o
, dictator, partially created by their own country, very C\
' possibly sent his killers into the United States to commit (D
‘murder and get away with it? How can they feel secure :
when they don’t know, and can’t find out, what their own
intelligence agencies are doing? |
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etelwr Murder Case

By TOM FIEDLER

Horald Washington Bureao .

«~ WASHINGTON — The case

three militant Cubans

~ charged in connection with the
bombing assassination of form
: Chilean diplomat Orlando Letelier
. went to the jury late Tuesday, near~
: 1y five weeks after the trial began.

The jury of seven women and

* five men retired to deliberate at
| 3:30 p.m. after hearing final rebut.
. tal arguments from federal prosecu-

@
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s tors and a 2l4-hour instruction

. from U.S. District Judge Barrington
. Parker Jr.
- Two hours later, the jury sent a
- note to Parker asking for several
' exhibits. Among them were prose-
- cution charts detailing the chain of
. evidence against the defendants and
copies of plea agreements made by
the government with three informe
« ants in return for the testimony.
« The judge dismissed the jurors
“ for the night shortly before 7 p.m.
- He asked them to return at 9 a.m.

4 _THE Tgxﬁ anti-Casetfw/Cub ns
Igna¢io and Guillefmo Novo
X Sa mpol, brothers, and A Ross

jaz — are among eight persons
'named in the mdlctment for takmg
~part in the assassination er carrying
-out a coverup.
" Letelier, . former Chilean ambas~

p tberold

Y- oy

Is Sent to the

J ury

sador to the United States, had be-
come a critic of the Chilean regime
t seized power in a military
up. He and a young co-worker,
Ronni Moffitt, died Sept. 21, 1976,

whén a bomb . exploded be;feath g

Letelier’s car.

According to prosecution t ti=
mony, the Chilean secrelt‘\zl&sicg
agency DINA sent its AmeTican-

born agent, Michael Townley, to as<
sassinate Leteliep”with help from ~ f
‘the -militan”"Cuban _Nationalist.
Movemen s i) X

 TOWNLEY, a one-time Miami
auto mechanic, has pleaded guilty

‘and " admitted - building the bomb :

that blew up Letelier’s car.’ He was
the prosecution’s key witness
against his alleged Cuban accom-
plices.

The defense, meanwhlle, has con-
tended that the three Cubans were
scapegoats framed by Townley.

“Two of the three — Guillermo

" Novo and Ross — are charged with

five counts ot,murder gr conspxracy
to murder.

though neitb@f uwas "Wlth

ey when the

Parker told the jury that, nnder

conspiracy law, their alleged partice,

liable. Each m
maximum sen

bomb exploded, - :
. one count of conspiracy to murder a
_ foreign official. He could have been
ipation in the plot makes them fully
ler count carries-a -
of lifein pnson. -

Letelier’s Widow
=+« outside courthouse
IGNACIO NOVO, who lives in

~Miami, is charged only with partici-

pation in a coverup. He allegedly
made two. false statements to a
grand jury mvestlgatmg the mur-

-ders and also is charged with fail-

ure to report his knowledge of the
crime to authorities.

~ Each misstatement carries a pen-
alty of up to five years in jail. The
so-called “misprison™ allegation —
withholding knowledge of a felony |
— carries a maxnmum three-year,
sentence. |
< Guillermo Novo,;s also charged |

‘with two‘counts of lying to a grand |

ury.’ 1
© Townley has p!eaded guilty to.

sentenced to life in prison. But in
return for his testimony, he was
ﬁltenced to three to 10 years,

F&b‘wu‘s (N Q09

B9 D=7



Background - |
Sketches of

Convicted
ot

mci Novo Sam-
pol _were ar-
rested April 14,
1978, in Miami 4
on charges not.
related to the
Letelier  case.
According  to
federal authori-
ties, Ross Diaz
and Novo Sam-
pol were trying
to flee the 3
country — fi- ROSS-DIAZ
nanced through the sale of narcotics
— when they were arrested.

Diaz also has been charged in
connection with a bombing in
Union City, N.J,, involving a com-
pany that was sending medical sup-
plies to Cuba via Canada. Also, Ross
Diaz once refused to testifv before a
grand jury in Washington in con-
nection with the Letelier case.

Guillermo Novo Sampol, 39, is a
former chemist who was expelled |
from the American Chemists Asso-
ciation in 1968 after his conviction
for possession of explosives. He
was the leader of the Cuban Nation-
alist Movement for the New York-
New Jersey area. _

According to federal sources, he
traveled in Chile in 1975 to visit
Cuban exile leader Orlando Bogch.

He is the brother of Ignacio Novo !
Sampol.

i

Ignacio Novo Sampol, 40, was a
founder of the Cuban Nationalist
Movement in 1959. Over the years,
he has been arrested in connection’
with numerous terrorist acts
against Cuban installations, but he
successfully overturned his only
conviction. e aaly

Neither he nor his brother Guil- |
lermo is an exile from the Fidelt
Castro government; they came to
‘the United States in 1954. Ignacio
lived in Miami for more than three
years, working as a salesman.

2 4B~
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tion Case

. Ronni Moffitt, at Sheridan Circle as

A chronology of events in the Or-
lando Letelier assassination case:
.+ Sept. 21, 1976 — A car bomb
kills Letelier and an associate,

they drive to work through Wash-
ington’s Embassy Row.
-~ Oct. 17, 1976 — A Venezuelan
newspaper reports that two un-
named Cuban exile brothers living
in the United States have been im-
. Plicated in the Letelier ‘assassina=~
tion. The information came from
other Cuban exiles being questioned
about the Oct. 6 terrorist bombing
‘of a Cuban airliner off Barbados,
the newspaper El Nacional said.

Jan. 15, 1977 — Three Cuban
exile veterans of the Bay of Pigs,
Miami residents, are summoned to
testify before a federal grand jury
in Washington investigating the
Letelier assassination. At least a
dozen more Cuban exiles are called
later to testify. %
‘ 2pril 0, 1977 — José Dionisio
Suérez, an anti-Castro exile living
in Elizabeth, N.J., is jailed for refus-
ing to testify before the Letelier
grand jury. He was released after a
year'in jail. ;

‘March 5, 1978 — The Santiago |
newspaper El Mercuriofidentifies a
mystery figure sought in thé assas-

sination ‘as Michael Vernon Town-

ley, an American expatriate living
in Chile. i ¥
_ March 21, 1978/ — Chilean Gen.

nuel Contreras, former chief of
§'e cret police, resigns from the

rmy. :
" March 29, 1978 — A Chilean mil-
itary judge questions Townley be-
hind closed doors in Santiago.

© April 8, 1978 — Townley is ex- |
pelled by Chilean authorities, who
deliver him into the custody of two
FBI agents assigned to bring him
back to the United States for ques- l
tioning in the Letelier case.

April 10, 1978 — A U.S. Disjrict |
Court Judge in Washington gfders
Townley to be held withoutbond as
a material witness :

April 14, 19784 Alvin Ross Diatz {
e o T nra AL”

ronol

May 17, 1978 — Ross Di

Letelier.

in the Letelier assassination.
“dor George Landau is recalled
of Washington’s displeasure o

Letelier murder investigation.

CONTRERAS

o (o}
TOWNLEY A A MY
at the time of the slaying. - - s
- May 2, 1978 — Tg;?nfey’s Chil- Fe bl Ub
ean wife, Mariana Callejas, reports
in Chile that he has told U.S: inves-
tigators who his accomplices were
in the assagsination.
-May &; 1978 — Ignacio Novo
Sampof is arrested on charges o
conspiring to murder Letelier, afid
ordered held on $200,000 bong<José
Dionisio . Suarez and Vir%ilio Paz,
Cuban exile residents of New Jer-
sey, are also charged with conspira-
cy. (They remain at large.) i
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charged with conspiracy to murder’
May 18, 1978 — The Justice De-
partment formally charges Guiller-|
mo Novo Sampol with conspiracy
June 23, 1978 — U.S. Ambassa-
Chile “for consultations” as a sign

lack of Chilean cooperation in the

ogy of the Letelier Assassina

dau returned to his post after nine
days.

Aug. 1, 1978 — The Letelier
grand jury in Washington indicts
the five Cuban exiles previously
charged and three former officials
of the Chilean secret police, DINA.
The indictment says Gen. Contrer-
as, former head of the DINA, “initi-
ated the action ... and ordered the
assassination” of Letelier. Contrer-
as and the two other ofiic;v(fgdict-
ed, Lt. Col. Pedro Espinoza and

az is

from
ver a

Lan-

—r

t& e,("a,\d

LS kcl‘\cl
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_Capt. Armando Fern4 Larios,
are reported to be under house ar-
rest in Chile.

Aug. 11, 1978 — In a plea-bar-
gaining arrangement, Townley
pleads guilty to conspiracy to assas-
sinate Letelier. In return for a re-
duced sentence of 10 years in pris-
on, Townley agrees to testify
against the others. He will be eligi-
ble for parole after serving one-

third of the sentence.

Sept. 20, 1978 — The United
States formally requests that Chile
extradite the three former DINA of-
ficers, Contreras, Espinoza and Fer-
niandez Larios. The Chilean su-
preme court has not ruled on the re-
quest.

Jan. 9, 1979 — The Washington
trial of Ross Diaz and the Novo
Sampols begins.

%~93-30

in 1976

killed

Orlando Letelier
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2 Fugltlves

Tw1ce Elude
Authorities

Authorities twice narrowly have
missed catching the two fugitive

Cuban exiles char, in connection
* with the car bombing assassination

of Orlando Letelier, official sources
reported Wednesday.

The sourceyi’gythe two, Virigi-
lio Paz Romer6d ang-José Dionisio |
Suarez Esquivel,~eluded would-be |
captors first in Miami and later in
Ecuador. Law enfercement officials |
are also said to have miSsed Suarez
in San Jose, Calif., wheére his for-
mer wife lives.

Dates and details for the near-
misses were not given. The two fu-
gitives, apparently traveling togeth-
er, are now said to be probably
somewhere in Mexico, living among
the Cuban exile community there.

The FBI has offered a.reward of
up to $10,000 for information lead-
ing to the arrest of either Suérez or

Paz.

Sudrez was jailed in April 1977
for refusing to testify before a fed-
eral grand jury in Washington in-
vestigating the Letelier killing. He
was released a year later. The
grand jury indicted him, Paz and sxx
others Aug. 1, 1978.

The FBI says Sudrez electronical-
ly triggered the bomb that killed
Letelier and Ronni Moffitt.

Paz’ fingerprints were found on a
bottle of potassium permanganate,
a chemical used-in explosives that
investigators,~discovered in the

Union City; N. J., office of _Alvin .
Ross_Di Ross Dlaz was one of

three men convicted Wednesd.
Like Ross Diaz, Paz and Suharez

"belonged to the Cuban Nationalist

exile organization.
Suérez, 40, is known in militant ,
circles as Charco de Sangre — Pud-

" dle of Blood. As a youth, he fought
with Castro’s guerrillas ' in the |

mountains of Oriente Province.

Movement, a militant_ antl Castro |

After the 1959 Castro takeover,

Sudrez broke with Castro and was
jailed in Havana’s La Cabana. He es-
caped and fled to the United States,
where he lived in Union City.

Paz, 27, also lived in Union Clty,
where he worked as a used car
salesman. He is known to have re-.
ceived training in- espionage from'

Chilean agents and the FBI has de- '

scribed him as “extremely danger-
ous.”

VV\\.OOM? )cge\’o&\é
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5 soughtin Letelier case
as’ }hree sfand convicted

e e
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WASHINGTQN — 'l‘hé USS. goi ernment success- .

ubans

“The case is not over yet S Attorney Earl Sil-
bert said yesterday after the guilty verdicts were an-
nounced.

The federal court jury also convicted a third ant:-
Castro Cuban of lying to a grand juryrand covering up
the plot to kill Letelier. Ronni Motfitt‘ a co-worker of
Letelier, also died in-‘the bl

aid the govern
gitive members of

aﬁ'lent f§ pressmg its search *
the Cuban Nationalist
and pursuing its request for the extradition

of three former Chilean segfet agents. ,
Family members and/friends sobbed loudly as th
jury foreman announcgd the verdict on each count *

against Guillermo/No¥o Sampol, his brother igndgio.
and Alvin Ross Diaz.
Guillermo Novo and Ross, who face possible life

terms when sentenced later, displayed no emotion.
Each was convicted on five, counts in connection with
the slayings themselves. Guillermo Novo also was con-
victed on two counts of lying to a grand jury in connec-
tion with the case.

Ignaclo Novo faces up to 13 years in prison — five
years each on two counts of lying to a grand jury and

three years on a charge of covermg up the murder plot.
“They are innocent. We're going to appeal. We're
. going 'to win,” Ignacio Novo's wife, Sylvia, said after

assassinating forme;m ‘the defendants were led away.

C do Letelier, is trying to get.
S e D L T

* . ‘Letelier’s widow, Isabel, said she hoped others in-
gved would be brought to justice so there would be
more tragedies, no more assassinations, no more

rept_'ession " She has taken over much of her husband’s

role criticizing alleged human rights violations in Chile.

Letelier,” ambassador to the United States from -
1971-73, was killed Sept. 21, 1976, when a remote-con-
trol bomb ripped through hns car on Washington’s Em- ’
bassy Row.

*  Government witnesses told jurors Chile’s secret po- :
lice agency, formerly called DINA, initiated the plot to
kill Letelier and convinced the militant Cuban Nation-
alist Movement to help.

Former DINA director guan anuel Contreras Se-
gulveda is one of three named in this country’s extradi-
tion request, now before Chile's Supreme Court.

' The'star government witness was_Michael Town-:
ley, a former Chilean secret agent who pleaded guilty |
to planting the Letelier bomb. In return for his testimo-
ny, U.S. authorities agreed to recommend his parole
after the minimum time of a 40-month to 10-year sen~
tence. He could have recelved a life term if convicted ot.
murder.

Security was tight during the trial because of
threats to Judge Barrington Parker and prosecutor Eu-
gene Propper. .
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Mrs. Isabel Letelier ¢
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Letelier Jury Convicts 3 Cubans

b By TOM FIEDLER

Herald Washington Bureau

- WASHINGTON — Three militant anti<Castro Cu- -
bahs were convicted Wednesday for th€ir part in an

international conspiracy resulting in th murder of for-
mer Chilean diplomat Orlando Letelier.
* Letelier, a staunch opponent of the military reglme
in Chile, died Sept. 21, 1976, when a bomb ripped
through his car as he drove along Embassy Row, a
fashionable Washington area.

An air of tension pervaded the heaw
courtroom at 4 p.m. when tHe’ defendants
moned to hear the verdi

guarded
ere sum-

come.

Virtually surrounded by grim- faced uUs. marshals. 3

Novo turned and called across the room to his wife in
Spanish: “It’s certain they:will cut our throats.”"

The seven women and five men on the jury, havmg
deliberated a total of eig
room without even a gIance at the defense table.

“Have you reached a verdict,” asked Judge Barring-
ton Parker Jr.

“Yes,” said the male roreman. “on all 15 counts 2

(For security reasons, jUI‘OI‘S names were not re-
,vealed)

“How do you t'md on count one, conspiracy to mur-

g after the verdtct der a forelgn\)fﬂcial"” asked the clerk.

M\QN\;

113 erdd«

3 fhrough the 14 re
- “guilty” after e

” The leader of the three, -
. Guillermo_Novo Sampol, apparently sensed the out-

t hours, filed into the court- .

“Guiltys” replied the foreman, his voice an expres-
sionless monotone. At that, eight Cuban women — in-
cluding the wives, family and friends of the defendants
-~ cried out and broke into loud sobs.

The sobbing grew uricontrolled as the clerk read
ing counts, and the foreman said
one.

Alvin Ro iaz and Guillermo Novo Sampol were
pronounced - guilty of five counts of murder arising
from Letelier’s death and that of his young associate,
Ronni. K. Moffitt. She was a passenger when the car
exploded.

The third defendant, Guillermo’s brother_Ignacio, of
Miami, was convicted of taking part in a coverup by
lying to a grand jury and failin report knowledge of
“the erime to authorities. :
¢ . Each murder count carri€s a sentence of 20 years to

“life in prison. Ignacio Novo Sampol’s conviction carries
a maximum sentence of 10 years for lying to the grand

jury and three yéars for not reporting the crime.

The defendants — separated from spectators by a
cordon of 14 U.S. marshals — remained stoic through
each “gmlty" pronouncement.

But as they were led from the courtroom later, Ig-
nacio Novo Sampol, his eyes brimming with tears,
raised his fist in a defiant gesture and called “Viva

Turn to Page 20A Col. 1
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- Associated Press
Distraught Relatives Leave Court

e 3 siste_r Anna Pleyva Novo, left, Lucy Ross, daughter



Cupa.” '@
Ross Diaz echoed {he cry, Then
Guillermo wrapped=<his arm around

his brother and the two walked
gtnckly out the side door. -

_ Defense attorneys Paul Goldber- *nan
ser. Lawrence Dubin and Oscar

Suarez indicated that they would
file an appeal. -
 The verdict could have serious
‘repercussions for U.S.-Chile rela-
tions, which already have been
strained by the trial. The plot to kill
Letelier, according to dramatic tes-
timony during the five-week trial,
was instigated by DINA, the Chil-
ean military government's secret
police arm, to silence Letelier’s crit-
icism of the military junta.
FBI sources said later that the
convictions also could cripple the

The car bombing touched off an

ot }i,‘:. international investigation reaching

the highest levels of the Chilean
junta. A U.S. grand jury
three Chilean military officers con-
nected with DINA.
The three

—- have not b.een extradi desplte

‘repeited state department requests.

The murder also triggered an in- !
tense investigation into the Cuban- |

exile terrorist movement and its re- -

lations with DINA. '

THE FBI got its biggest break in 5
the case when the United States — |
using the threat of seveping rela-
tions with Chile — wds granted
permission to extradife American |
expatriate Michael V. Townley and
bring him to the United-States for
questlonmg

vence ) ann

a B cvanwvainld Farvaar

‘indicted -

ée Defendanfé"ﬁre F ound Gu;lty* :

In ”Connectwn ith Leteltei:

g confessed to bemg the DINA agent
‘assigned to kill Letelier with help

from the militant Cubans. =
He confessed to bull&ﬁng the re-

mote-controlled bomb that was

used in the murders and, in five
days of testimony, detailed the
scheme from its alleged inception in

. Santiago, Chile, to its conclusion on’

Sheridan Clrcle near the Chilean

Sy

N\-\QMQ

;
: T L
.

‘Mur .‘er 7

Embassy

-~ Asaresult of‘ins coopemtxtm -

given in exchgnge for a sentence of
between three and 10 years — a
federal grand jury indicted the de-
fendants, the three Chilean DINA
officials and two other Cubans who

remain fugitives. They are VlrEI' lio
- Paz Romero angd José Diol >ua-

rez of Union City, N.J.

rbera..u‘«
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The Car In Whlch Orlando Letelier Was Murdered Wit
i “ G blq,&} mJVashmgton killeo

s ‘_._,. H 1 .
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Hm » ..,.’: T~ " The car bombing touched off an confessed to being the.
E' m ' international investigation reaching assigned to kill Letelie
~ the highest levels of the Chilean from the militant Cuban

Cuba.” ' junta. A U.S. grand jury indicted ~ He confessed to buil
Ross Diaz echoed the cry, Then three Chilean military officers con- "rﬁote-controlled boml
Guillermo wrapped-his arm around nected with DINA. ‘used in the murders ¢
his brother and the two walked The three days of testimony,
gulckly out the side door. - e : y scheme from its allege:
. Defense attorneys Paul Goldber- 4 nandex I 5 _ Santiago, Chile, to its
ger. Lawrence Dubin and Oscar - — have not been extradit despite‘ Sheridan Circle near
Suarez indicated that they would ‘repedted state department SRS T =
file an appeal. - . The murder also triggered an in-
The verdict cdhld have serious tense investigation into the Cuban-t

repercussions for U.S.-Chile rela- exile terrorist movement and its re- ¥

tions, which already have been lations with DINA. i
strained by the trial. The plot to kill s
Letelier, according to dramatic tes- THE FBI got its biggest break in |

timony during the five-week trial, the case when the United States — |
was instigated by DINA, the Chil- using the threat of seveping rela-
ean military government's secret tions with Chile — wds granted
police arm, to silence Letelier’s crit- permission to extradife American
icism of the military junta. expatriate_Michael V. Townley and
FBI sources said later that the bring him to the United States for
convictions also could cripple the questioning.
terrorist wing of the anti-Castro Townley, a 36-year-old former
Cuban movment. Because of that, Mlaml auto mechanic, ultimately
authorities had placed great impor- .~ =

tance on winning the case
THE DEFENDAN"I%Honged to 7

the Cuban National Movement,
which — along wAth a splinter I
group called Omega 7 — is suspect- |
ed of bombings in northern New
Jersey, New York City, Washing-
ton and Miami.

The explosion that killed Leteli-
er occurred within sight of the Chil-
ean ambassador's residence —
Letelier's home when he was the
representative for the Marxist gov-
ernment of former Chilean Presi-
dent Salvador Allende.

. When Allende was overthrown
in a bloody military coup in 1973,
Letelier remained in Washington
and became one of the most effec-
tive critics of that junta’s human
rights policies. Letelier, according
g testimony, was ktHed to silence

m.
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DINA Agents

-Might Escape
Facing Trial
D FROM PAGE | A

final decision.

ACCORDING TO the U.S. indict-
ment, Fernandez enlisted the aid of |
Americ expatriate Michael V.
Townley, an electronic§ €Xpert who |
lived most of his life in Chile, m
planning the bombing.

Townley, who says he Worked
for DINA and carried out the mur-
der mission on Espinoza’s order,
was extradited a year ago. In return
for a reduced sentence of 10 years
in prison, he agreed to cooperate
with the Justice Department.

Chamorro said that type of plea
bargaining is illegal in Chile.

As a result of Townley’s testimo-
ny, the indictment also charged five
Cuban milit:st‘-in connection with

. the assassination.

. Last month/two of them, Guiller-

mo vo S 1l and Alyin Ross
were convicted of mlirder and

senfenced to life in prisgn. A third

Cuban, Ignacio Novo/Sampol of
Miami, éuillermo's brother, was
sentenced to eight years in prison
for perjuyy about the murger.
The #wo other men, Virgilio Paz |
Eome ro and Jose Diohisio Suarez
gm

vell, have eluded arrest. ‘

m \QM . ‘-'B"-VG-LA’
Apcil IR 1479
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3 Chileans
| Mayﬂ Never
Face Trial

Extradition Dim

In Letelier Case

3¢ RN

From Herald Wire Services

SANTIAGO, Chile — The Chil-
ean Supreme Court’s chief prosecu-
tor Tuesday recommended rejection
of a U.S. request for the extradition
of three military officers ljnked to
the 1976 assassination former
diplomat Orlando Letelief.

The prosecutor, Gustavo Cha-
morro, also said he was recom-

. mending against trying the three
men in Chile on U.S. charges, say-
ing the method the U.S. used to ob-
tain the evidence most damaging to
them was not legal in Chile.

The actions diminish the chance
that the three will testify or be tried
in any court — Chilean or Ameri-
can — about the assassination de-
spite the fact that they have been
indicted by a U.S. grand jury in con-
nection with the case. Such testimo-
ny might have spelled out any offi-
cial role of the Chilean government

(in the assassination.

When the U.S. indictments were
handed down on Aug. 1, 1978, Chil-
ean observers speculated extradi-
tion of the officers was unlikely but
that they might be tried in Chile,

CHAMORRO submitted his rec-
ommendation, in a 15-page docu-
ment, to Supreme Court President
Israel Borquez.

Chamorro told reporters after
meeting with Borquez that the U.S.
extradition request should be reject-
ed because of “lack of evidence”
linking the military officials to the
bomb slaying of Letelier, former
Chilean ambassador to the U.S., and
associate Ronni Moffitt in Washing-
ton.

Chamorro stressed, however,

that his recommendation was ‘‘not

a dictum that the judge in charge is |
obliged to obey.”

In September, the United States
asked the military regime of Presi- |
dent Augusto Pinochet to/extradite |
the officers, including,l)egred Brig. |
en. Manuel Contreras Sepulveda,.
ormer head 0 s feared DINA,
the secret police, :

The other o men are Col.
Pedro EspinoZa, DINA’s former op-

erations chief, and agent Armando
Fernandez < All three have’
een in military custody since Sep-
tember in Santiago.

LETELIER WAS the representa-
tive for the Marxist government of
former Chilean President Salvador
Allende. When Allende was over-
thrown by a military coup in 1973,
Letelier stayed in Washington to
lead criticism of Pinochet’s new re-
gime.

The U.S. grand jury accused the
‘three Chilean officials of ordering
the Embassy Row bombing to si-
lence that criticism.

Under Chilean law, Borquez has
five days to make a preliminary rul-
ing that can be appealed by the
three officers’ defense lawyers or
by Alfredo Etcheverry, a Chilean
attorney hired by the U.S. govern-
ment to represent it in Chile.

The ruling by Borquez, whether
it is appealed or not, will be sent to
the Chilean Supreme Court for a
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.Gustavo Chamorro.

- killing the diplomat.

wh

‘bomb in Mr. Leteli

Leteher Case Isn’t Closed Yet

HE GOVERNMENT of Chile sur- cated in the klllmg, to Went U S.
- prised no one with its discovéry of Ambassador %egrge Landau ' has
a legalistic excuse to obstruct the sworn that Chife’s military ruler, Augus-
e\:tradmon of three military officers ac- to Pinochef, tried to obtain false -pass-
cused of the murder of left- wmg dlplo- mo of his spies. Ofie of
mat Orlando Leteli- Michael Townle as the Goveri; nt 'S
er. The'' United, | _Star witness in the Letelier trial. ﬂ'
States mustido its’ - Ambassador Landau’s testxmony was
best  to. keep the, resmcted because the. diplomat: 1said if
case.aliveiin spite of - he told the FBI all he knew about .Géner-
the « decision by, al Pinochet’s role, he could ‘not be effec-
Ch‘rle%n prosecuto tive in Chile. Of course Genéral Pmoohet
has demed any mvolvemen} m:the  @ssas-
sination, but there seems: o be ne indica-
tion that'he wants to let h-is former top
spies out of the country. " :
The_excuse used by ] Prc,secutor Cha-
' morro is that Townley tqstl ‘ied under a
and an assistant, Pinoche t“' plea-bargaming agreement:, whlch is ille-
Ronni . Moffitt. It gal in Chile.
was an-act of terrorism-on United States  That's no good. This w agté'.\ronsm on
soil ﬂd must bg ‘punished in accordance U.S$. soil, and the Justice Department is
with US law. . trying to make the conspirators pay for
Threé anti-Castro Cubans already a violation-of U.S. law: It is not med-
have been convicted: in the case. Tl%mg in Chilean internal affairs to de-

Coldly . efficient
assassins planted a.

er's car in 1976

Umted States has sought extradition of and that the Government _keep up the
diplomati¢ and legal préssure for extra-
po-  dition.

¢ .former opera- . The reaSon the Umted States has been
tions. chief of D NA and spy Armando relatively free: of acts of terrorists is that
Ferdanez Larios. All of thém are in cus- the authoritjes‘ﬁave /made it clear that

%

.

tody in Santnago : such cnminﬂs will be prosecuted That
The Chilean gover.nment was impli- * prmcxp&gmust not be compromised.
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UTSIDE the courtroom of U.S.
District Court Judge i

tencing for

tion of former Chilean dlplomat Og
lando Letelier. -

Much hand-shaking and’ smiliég
took place as the reporters, from

several nations, brought each other

up to date on their activities since
their last gathermg almost Iou

months ago.. .
It was a ‘friendliness born of fa-
miliarity. . Sporadically through

1978, then almost daily through
Jam&? and February, the report-

ened as the bizarre Letelier
story of international intrigu

e and
political M ation unfoldei’m

Parker’s courtroom. Lt 6

In many ways, Townley
tencing Friday was like a g
tion: Afterjms gathering the repo
ers would probably go their sépa
rate weys seldom to see each other
again. 8

ALL Oi us will take away fr
this case some common memo
that would seem the stuff of a good
John LeCarre novel. Even when
stripped to its barest elements, the
story of Orlando Letelier's assassi-
nation in downtown Washmgton
for effectively criticizing the poli-
cies of Chile’s present military
ernment will prcbably re
among the most interesting of
reporter’s career.

But I will remember ‘most vividly
my impressions of Michael Town-
ley, the American expatriate who
admitted masterminding the assas-
sination on orders from his supe-

3

;c/zael 1 ownl ey Pussle

OUR MAN

 tem fiedler

gifts wh

on. -
%‘M in essence, appeared
‘the model parent and husband.

~ BUT in that same soft tone of
voice. Townley described in scrupu-
lous detail how he assembled the
bomb that blew Letelier's legs off
and, by accident, killed Letelier's
co-worker, Ronni Moffitt.

More important, without regis-

ering any hint of emotion, Town-
*lﬁw“ itially said that he had no re-

grets a carrying out his assign-

‘to kill the former ambassador

bec usé both he and Letelier were

“*soldiers” carrying out their re-
spective assignments.

1 found it especially disturbing
that a man who appeared so gentle
and wholesome could show no re-
morse about carrying out what

IN WASHINGTON

of what he did is not
In fact, there

Like Townley, most of those pi-
lots considered themselves techni-
cians — men with excellent educa-
tions and finely honed skills that
enabled them to maneuver a com-
plex aircraft over a target and bring

it back safely.

It was also for them a technical
“decision — not a moral one — to
press the buttons that released the
bombs that rained death on so many
unarmed people.

WERE these men murderers?
 They certainly don’t believe they

. were.

- They never looked their victims
n the eye. but death, nevertheless,
as the result of their actions.
e disturbing thing is that it
‘a great step from that rational-
juﬂon to Townley’s. He never
ed his victim in the eye, either.
‘haps the only difference is
a,j; Townley finds no distinction
tween a political
shooting war.
But his ratlonalization of the

Michael V. Townle

I WAS helped to .
after thinking about i
that he was simply a soldler domg
his part in a battle.

: -
Killing in battle, after all, is not

like killing at all. At least, that has
been the time-honored rationaliza-
tion that allows even the most reli-
gious among us to get around the
Commandment, “Thou shalt not
kill.”

A disturbing parallel can be
drawn between Townley’s rational-
ization and that, say, of the Air
Force B52 pilots who took part in
the saturation bombing raids over
Hanoi and Haiphong only a few
years ago.

.-can appear perfectly rational whxle

‘taking credit for adespicable action.

‘_‘,;. ~Anot yrter, in one of those

. press-room discussions that domi-
nated the trial recesss, captured the
esSemie of the troubling moral con-
tradiction that Tawnley personi-
fied.

“After all,” my colleague said.
“Adolph Eichmann was supposedly
a nice guy. too.” Consider what he
rationalized himself into doing.

war and a-

W\.\‘M % “ ._r‘_\d
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VHAT TOWNLEY CAN'T-TELL: > "« ' ‘murders; other-cities and the existence of
R R e i T B s v ‘an assassination underground onthree con-’
tinents sponsored by Chile’s military rulers. -

Most of the'information is now in the

hands of the Justice Department, but it re-

mains under wraps. The reason: secret

agreements were signed last year with the

Chilean Government by United States offi-

R Lo . cials negotiating for the extradition of Mi-
OHN DINGES o < chael V. Townley, the key witness in the
R T Letelier murder trial. In these agreements,
tates passport is false, but the faded they would not reveal the byproducts of the
tamps tell a'story. In Rome, there is a spe- ; Letelier investigation to authorities in
ial telephone number to contact a terrorist other countries when crimes committed by
‘hose nickname is “Topogigio.” Other - Chilean agents in conjunction with local
ieces of the puzzle come from hotel, tele- terrorists were involved. L
hone and flight records from a dozen.' The new and potentially more explosive
ities. areas of investigation are opening up as the’
The evidence surfaced in the course of Letelier case moves into its final legal
ne investigation of the car-bomb assassi- stages. At a five-week trial ending in Feb-
ation of former-Chilean Amhassador Qr- - , ruary, a 'Washmgton jury convicted two
etelier in Washington. The clues’ . Cuban exiles who were accused of acting as

:25 !a

r beyond Letelier’s death ‘to other 1 “hit men” under contract with DINA,

-
SRS




vt 1

mg

erican request that Chx]e ‘extradite- Gen Manuel
treras— the head of DINA at the time of the mur- " .
“and two’ ‘DINA officers accused of omermg, ,fi- -
cmg and arrangmg the assassmatxon o s ‘~ Qe
tihe center ofihe DINA network is ‘the fxgure of-:-_" ¥
"assassin, contract agent and inter-

onal liaison Tor DINA. American-born, he spied

,\_,

‘killed for DINA: After his expulsion from Chile, .

told American investigators how., under DINA
ars, he arranged Letelier’s’ September-21, 1976,
issination” with “a " sophisticated remote-control

1b built by himself and set off by Cuban exiles. -

swnley became the chief prosecution witness at
trial of the two Cuban expatriates on charges of
‘der and consplracy and at that of a third for cov-
g up the crime. For six days on the stand, Town-
natter-of—factly described the gruesome details of

bombing that killed Letelier and an American

1an, Ronni _Moffitt, who was riding with him.

ut there was much more that was not heard at the -

. As a result of the Letelier case investigation.
ndant hard evidence has emerged that confirms
Iong-suspected involvement of Chile’s DINA in at-
:s on other prominent exiled opponents of the mil-
y Government. The first such attack was the
1bing murder of retired Armv Gen. Carlos Prats

\\ |

his wife in Argentina in September 1974 A year
rr. former Vice President a"

ler of centrist opposition to military ru]e and his
e were critically wounded by a gunman 's bullets
ome. ,

[ore ominously, the evidence traces the stzll incom-
2 but unmistakable .ouiline of a three-continent
work of violent anti-Communists receiving sup-
t and trammg from Chile in exchange for their
ticipation in DINA’s international terrorist opera-
is. Michael Towpley was DINA's liaison to groups
\rgentina, the United States, Spain, France, Ger-
ny and Italy. Townley has also-admitted carrying
DINA missions he refuses to describe in Holland,

.;,-{"_.ﬂ‘owm
s o parts-of the neltwork are known to mvo]ve offxc:al]y

E"Ex"ﬁ'rﬁ"Austrié'anHquerﬁbourg'ﬁndependentmf
~~and 50~ far’shxelded from scrutmy—othe

.....

: ,» “eral Latin ‘Ameriéan’ countries backed up by SOphlSt]- .
S cated‘computers based in Santlag,e**‘ PUePRely? et o

Pt V.,/,F
L

-

~ n October 41973,
0 E_m ‘donstruction ‘worker.

Less than a month before in Chile, the elected so-

became. " gt
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Usmg 4 forged Florida driver’s license and .
) - birth certificate in that name, he applied for
‘a Umted States passport in a Hialeah, Fla., court-"
.house listing South America as his destmatlon el

“cialist Government of President- Salvador- Allende--
~was overthrown in a right-wing military coup that

was one of the bloodiest in Latin American history:.
Townley, the son of a wealthy Ford Motor Company

executive, had spent much of his life since adoles-
cence in Chile, where his father was stationed. While
the Allende Government was in power, Townley had
joined a rightist group engaged in terrorism against
Allende. He was implicated in a- homicide and forced

_ to flee the country. Now he was returning.

Soon after his arrival in Chile, Townley was ap-
proached by DINA operations director Lieut. Col.
Pedro Espinoza, who was later indicted in the Letel-
ier case. Espinoza recognized him as a potential
agent: armed with two identities asan American cit-
izen, experienced in commando operations, electron-
ics and explosives, totally devoted to the fanatic anti-
Communism of the Chilean dictator, Gen. Augusto

newly created secret police.

It was not difficult to convince-DINA chief Contre-
ras that Townley would be useful as an American
agent to do DINA’s dirty work abroad. Townley was

‘hired in mid-1974, joining the other civilian contract

agents recruited for DINA operations from the ranks
of the neo-fascist Father)and and Liberty Party,
Townley’s former comrades in'ferrorism against All-
ende. He was assigned to DINA’s “External Section.”
He acquired yet another identity: on September 6,
1974, Townley was given a Chilean identity card with

. his official DINA alias, Juan Andrés Wilson Silva,

technician. In what was perhaps his first major oper-
ation, Townley was ordered to go to Argentina to ar-

. Pinochet, Townley was a prime candidate for the _


http:Americ.an
http:t?hl)~an~~~p.le
http:I:.ov.:n!eY,-:-:a.nd

. @
\»4«:;-—(--—-;),,. Eatel ,---...L..,._‘,L—.

5 ..e...TheNu.tmn

remt o Avan s §tame nwmw\.—-~«.- Rl el b 2 rwews AL

range’ t‘ aa ,sacsma‘txon ralPrat, _.san exxlhd
}dk nge. loyal'st ‘and former. commander: in:chief of

the Chilean: Armed Forces Prats was co'v::dered the'

mostdangerons "rival ‘to General Pmochet. who' haﬂ
eXpelled him’ short.y after ‘the mxlxtary takeover. :
Towrley’s steps can _be “traced’ through the’ stxll

e

readable stamps in the Enyart passport: The’ stamps W

show him'flying from Santlago’s’Puaahuel Airporton”

September 10 bo Buenos Alres where Pratsand- his
wxfe ‘were_ living in exile. Accordmg to mvest1gat1ve

SOurces. Townley made contact with'low-level mem- .- .

bers of Argentma ] rampant terrorist’ commumty,
group of eivilian. mercenaries attached to a branch of
the Army Intelhgence Semce. L

“"f“"'

he mght of September 30, General Prats and
his wife, Sofia, were dinner guests at the
home of friends. They drove home after mid-
night. Prats stopped in the driveway of the
apartment building where the couple lived and got
out to open the garage door. A moment after he re-
turned to the driver's seat, the car door still open, 2
bomb EXploded Both were killed in a blast so power-
‘ﬁxl it blew.parts of the car nine stories hxgh onto an
‘apartment balcony. ‘Argentine investigators theo-
rlzed ina still secret report thata clock timing device
was uSed to detonate the bomb, rather than ‘aremote-
Eontrol ‘device such ‘as that used in the car bomb that
kl]led‘Leteher two years later in Washmgton Town-
fey’s Enyart passport shows him arerg in S'fantxago
tgfew mmutes after mldmght'—-mst about tbe txme
e

to“fxmsh the operatron ‘sothat’ he was*far*away ‘when.

the bomb went off.

After the Prats mission’ ‘in-fate 1974, Townley was
sent o’ Mrarm ‘He “bought buggmg'and*antl*’ouggmg
'e‘a:mpment “and ‘plugged ‘himself ‘into -Miami's ‘anti-
Castro. Cuban ‘terrorist. “umferground' “which -held
Ch)les Pmochet “and" ‘DINA in’great esteem bécause
of their “successful war agamst“the left. Townley let it
be known that DINA ‘was seeking a’suttable’group-to
Telp-on‘a speclaL mission..

“Ins Febrtrary 1975 “on‘a’ secondtrrp to- anml ‘con-
”t‘act was made w ‘the teader of the-Cithan National

small bu_tﬂmilxtant group on -the
arranged in ,New Jersey vuth Quﬂla:mg_ﬂgmnd
others of theC 2 "Then-Townley
returned to anm1 to-buy"the equipment to build the
aSsassmatlon devxce that _was-to:-become his-trade-
mark:‘a’ : ~paging-or “beepersystem,
which” he nodified-electrically to serveasa remote-

control detonater. . . PaTE

e

RIS

CN M. member : a sometlme ‘car:
galesman in hlS early 20s, . was sent by Novo to. help,.-

CTownley in’ Mex:eo For reasons not yet explamed

Townley,. his wife, Mariana, and Paz- -arrived weeks
late for the exile meeting and did-not carry out the as- ..
sassination plans. But the- relatmnshxp between -
DINA and C.N.M. contmued aCtIVe and mutually
fruitful.y = e g
-~ Meanwhile, the focus of DINA ch:ef Contreras wxd-

T —— e \

© gned to Europe, where- most Chilean exiles lived.
. Townley was sent to establish or renew contacts with ..

anti=Communist groups there. The Pmochet Govern- 7-‘
ent was becoming concerned ahpmt a new threat:

the Christian Demoeratic Party, originally acquies-
cent to the coup against the leftists, was moving into
opposition. Pinochet feared the formation of a united
- Christian Democratic-leftist opposition front that, ac-
‘cording to past elections, would represent up to 80
percent of the population. The exiles in Europe in-
cluded many of the parties’ top leaders, and they were

pursuing the idea of an alliance.

Tovmley &nd -Paz went to Rome in September
1975 to cement DINA s reTatxonshm with the Youth _
: the'militant youth arm
‘of the Fasclst Jtalian -Social Movement (M.S.1.). In-
Vestigators also ‘believe Townley was there to enlist
‘their- ‘helpi in’ assassmatmg the exiled elder statesman
1D s, Bernardo Leigh-

' e -“relationship -b'e’tween DINA and M.S.1’s
Youth ‘Front eppears to have been virtually a carbon
%opy ‘of the- DIN A-Ciiban Nationalist Movement link;

‘aboveboard ‘propaganda exchange and ideological

support<combined “with ‘clandestine terrorist opera-

“tions.
Town}ey’seontact “person was a man he knew as Al-
- whp w ent by the nicknames “Topo-.

Ttaveworked “out thh—Dl Stefano a three-way mutual
Z3id “drrangeément involving DINA, C.N.M. and Di
“Stefdno’s "youth ‘group. -The collaboration was to be

| ‘“put ‘to-a test, Townley -suggested, m the Lelgh’oon

“Townley, with- CN M. 2id, intended to ise the de- '

vxbecon a mxssxon for' \&hlch’ he invented his owrncode
name; Season’™ "had orderedhinr to-dis-
rupt’a meeting of Chxlean exile leaders in Me?_qco City

and ellmmate" as many as he could. Theassassxna-
fion" hst he Yater told mvesmgatorsw ras' headed by

-opération. - :

Leighton, thén 66, - was-a co-founder of the Chilean
‘Christian -Demoératic- Party and leader of its most
-liberal wing.'He had livéd in voluntary exile in Rome
*since-Decémber 1973. “He and his party had long-

Zstanding close ties with Italy’s ruling Christian Dem-

Yecratic “Party ~and ‘other Christian Democratic
‘Jeadérs areund-Europe.-Leighton’s assassination was
“portrayed -by- DINA -as -being politically .beneficial
“both: to-Chile’s junta-and-to the cause of Italian Fas-
¢¢ism. Réspeeted by both sides for his political savvy,
Leighton was eonsidered by DINA's analysts to be a
uéangerous “catalyst” " who could forge a precedent-

~ ‘setting: thaneeagamst the right that could spread to

Lo

Cother: coun’mes Di-Stefano agreed to carry out the

.
\

o
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ree-woy operation. Thetarget was™a;C. _an/the’ ted the crime.“The infc  «tion was relayed through

sassing Ttalian,and=in-a -twist—the Cuban‘exile
wement ‘would -take -creditfor the:operation™in
ier to take the-heat’off the Italians: < e avsh
Having secured Di Stefano's involvement. Townley
'w to the United States. On October 6..as Bernardo

righton and his wife stepped out of a'taxicab aftera

opping trip andwalked -to ‘their .apartment on
yme’s Via Aurelia, a few blocks from the Vatican.
ey were shot down from behind by a lone gunman.
sth were critically wounded but survived. Ana
righton. 57, shot in the spine. remains partially par-

yzed and confined to a wheelchair, Leighton recov-

ed fully from a head wound. but withdrew from
tive politics. The real or imagined threat to Pi-

ichet of a center-leftist coalition was erased; politi-..

1 leadership in the Christian Democratic Party
verted to more conservative anti-Communist fig-
‘es back in Chile.- . ‘ ' -

Miami’s Spanish-language paper. Diario las
méricas, received 2 communiqué postmarked Oc-

ber 10,in which a Cuban exile group identified as .

>ro, one of the pseudonyms for the Cuban National-
t Movement, claimed credit for shooting Leighton.
o details to verify the claim were given. but on No-
'mber 4, almost 2 month after the shooting, another
2ro0 communiqué was received by the Associated
ress office in Miami. The message said that
eighton was shot in the back of the head. not in the
rehead as reported in the press, and that the weap-
1 used Wasa 9°'mm. Beretta pistol. Italian police con-
rmed that the details were correct and could only
ive been obtained from someone with firsthand
1owledge of the assassination.

The confusing messages, it has now been learned,
ere part of the “test” of the trilateral pact agreed
pon in Rome. Townley’s Italian contacts who ar-
:nged the shooting attack péssed details of the
ound and gun to the CN.M,, which gave them belat-
ily to the press to bolster its claim to have commit-

’ nd two other Youth Front

"members named Luigi and Mauricio were then re-
~warded with trips 'in 1976 to- Chile, where:they

worked with DINA in training and propaganda
ProgTamSs,™ TV CC % e Thr TN et

" “‘What was to be the last act of the collaboration be-
tween DINA and the Cuban Nationalist Movement
took shape in mid-1976, when Chile’s rulers planned

" the assassination of QOrlando Letelier. The job was

given to Townley, a natural choice for an operation in
Washington because of his American citizenship and -
strong ties to cooperative Cuban Nationalist ‘Move- -
ment members living in New Jersey, a few hours
drive from Washington.

For the third September in as many years, Townley"
embarked on 2 DINA assassination mission. Once
more, Contreras ordered him to use the mission to test
elements of DINA’s overseas network. Paraguayan
intelligence, which had recently joined Operation
Condor, the counterinsurgency organization created
by Contreras to coordinate the secret police opera-
tions of the military Governments in South America’s
Southern Cone, agreed to provide false official pass-
ports-for DINA’s unspecified mission to Washington.

Taownley persuaded C.N.M. memberg Guillermo
Novao, Alvin Ross,..José Dionisia.Suarez.and his loyal
companion. Yirgilio Paz, to assist him in the assassi-
nation. At 9:30 A.M. on September 21, 1976, a bomb
exploded in Letelier’s. car as he rounded Sheridan
Circle near the Chilean Embassy, where he had once
lived. Receipt records show Townley was in Fort
Lauderdale. Fla., at the time, buying electronic
equipment at Audio Intelligence Devices.a manufac-
turer of electronic eavesdropping equipment. .

But this time Contreras’s reliance on his network
backfired. The Paraguayan passports, though never
used, provided investigators with pictures of Townley -
and another DINA agent involved in~the operation.
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Secuuiy was poor msxde ‘the Cuban‘exi ommumty
"and within Wweeks the C.N.M. role'in the murder-had

v

.....

- been -established: “American ' investigators began to
-follow thetrail of a “blond Chllean-Amencan said to .

be'DINA's liaison to the C.N.M. The trail led to Chile

in February 1978, when for the first time the picture .

and description of the suspected agent were. matched
thh Mlchael Townley : A sl o

., 1-—4"“-’*
- %

murder, . .demanded Townleys extradition.
- Chile, caught in one murder, negotiated to

prevent the other assassinations from being linked to
‘the Pinochet Government. Two weeks of tense negoti-
.ations in Washington and Santiago were interspersed
with heavy doses of diplomatic arm-twisting by

3 he Umted States bent on solvmg Letellers ’

- -protect the rest of DINA’s terror network and

United States officials. On April 7, a secret agree-
ment was signed in Washington by Chilean Undersec-

retary of Interior Enrique Montero and United
States Attorney Earl Silbert. The hitherto secret

agreemehnt, a copy of which was obtained by this re-

porter nearly a year after its signing, spells out the
conditions -for Townley’s release into American
hands. To obtain the expulsion of Townley, the United
States promised that “information [obtained through
the Letelier investigation]. .. will be conveyed only to
the Government of Chile,” and that the information
would be used by the United States only “to prosecute
violations of law in the United States.” The pact thus
prohibited the United States from passing on to, say,
Argentina, Germany or Italy, information uncovered
about Chilean terrorist acts within their borders.
Townley was put on a plane in handcuffs on April 8,
seated next to two F.B.l. agents and flown to a top-
security military base near Washington. Negotiations
began anew, this time about the conditions under
which Townley would cooperate with the investiga-
tion in the United States. On April 17, Townley spent
a sunny Monday afternoon on the enclosed lawn of the
Quantico Marine Detention Center conferring sepa-
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In late April, Mariana Townley aftempted to corvx:_

_ tact Di Stefano in Rome to assure him that her hus- .
~ band was not betraying DINA’s Italian connection.:
She called a number for emergencies that in the past

had been manned twenty-four hours a day by the.
"Youth Front militants. It had been disconnected. In
fact, Townley was refusing to answer investigators’
questions about ether DINA assassinations, inaccord-

.ance with his agreement, but his reticenc¢e could not

stemn the flow of clues and leads produced by the in-

. formation he provided on DINA and' his travels in

connection with the Letelier case.

Throughout the trial in January and February,
prosecutors fought off defense attorneys’ efforts to
force Townley to face cross-examination on other as-
sassination missions for DINA. United States Dis-
trict Judge Barrington Parker held to the guidelines
of the United States pact with Chile and declared off-
limits all questlons probing into other DINA opera-

tions and erimes.
Four men out of the nine indicted and charged last

year in connection with the Letelier murder are in
prison. Twe Cubans, Guillermo Novo and Alvin Ross,
were given life sentences. Ignamgm_ﬁ_mngzmm_
brother, was given five years for lying to a grand jury
and for misprision of a felony—covering up the crime.
Judge Parker finally, on May 10, sentenced Mi-
chael Townley to 2 maximum of ten years in prison.
Though bound by the plea bargain with Townley,
Parker expressed his discomfort with the way the
case and Townley himself have been handled. With
reason, for the United States had been maneuvered
into complicity with Chile’s efforts to cover up its

* international terrorist activities. Meanwhile, Presi-

rately with his defense attorney, Seymour Glanzer, .

his wife, Mariana, United States Attorneys, F.B.I.
agents-and two high-ranking Chilean Army intelli-
gence officers. A few hours later, he signed a plea-
bargaining agreement thh United States Attorney

Silbert. ’

Under the terms of the agreement, Townley would
tell what he knew about the Letelier assassination. He
and his family would receive protection. He would
plead guilty to one count of conspiracy to murder a
foreign official and be sentenced to three and one-
third years to ten years in prison.

Townley, too, was concerned about protecting
DINA'’s network, and at his insistence, a clause was
added providing that he could be required to give'in-
formation only about crimes involving American citi-
zens or those that were committed on United States
territory.

Townley underwentamarathonof hundredsofhours

dent Augusto Pinochet continues to insist that his

Government had nothing to do with Letelier’s death

" or with any other human rights violations, for that
- matter. The Chilean Supreme Court is expected to
.uphold on appeal the ruling denying extradition of

Contreras and the two officers on the ground that
Townley’s testimony was obtained in exchange for a
promise and is thus inadmissible.

The case is far from over for Townley. In a letter to
his wife a year ago—a copy of which was obtamed—-
Townley told of his fears:

With what has started in the press, screaming about
Argentina, Italy, ete., and what is going to come out at
the trial about Mexico, the rest of the world is
going to be screaming for you and me for many years
to come. It won’t make any difference that they also
scream for Contreras and the Chilean government,
they will be screaming first of all for us.. ..
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